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ITEM 1. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
- ----------------------------

                                 ACCESSITY CORP.
                      CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
                               SEPTEMBER 30, 2003
                                   (UNAUDITED)

                                     ASSETS
Current assets:
      Cash and cash equivalents                                    $    459,907
      Accounts receivable, trade                                        173,323
      Investments                                                     4,269,950
      Prepaid expenses and other current assets                          95,523
                                                                   ------------

            Total current assets                                      4,998,703

Property and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation                 500,286
Restricted certificate of deposit                                       300,000
Security deposits and other assets                                       53,511
                                                                   ------------

            Total assets                                           $  5,852,500
                                                                   ============

                      LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current liabilities:
      Accounts payable                                             $     91,267
      Accrued expenses and other current liabilities                    337,749
      Capital lease obligation                                           28,762
                                                                   ------------

            Total current liabilities                                   457,778
                                                                   ------------

Shareholders' equity:
      Common stock, $.015 par value, authorized 30,000,000
        shares; issued 11,978,991                                       179,685
      Preferred stock, $.01 par value, authorized 1,000,000
        shares; 1,000 issued and outstanding; liquidation
        preference of $1.25 million                                          10
      Additional paid-in capital                                     10,920,909
      Accumulated other comprehensive loss, unrealized holding
                   loss on investment securities                        (35,561)



      Deficit                                                        (3,965,839)
                                                                   ------------
                                                                      7,099,204

      Less common stock held in treasury, at cost,
        877,918 shares                                                1,704,482
                                                                   ------------

      Total shareholders' equity                                      5,394,722
                                                                   ------------

            Total liabilities and shareholders' equity             $  5,852,500
                                                                   ============

            See notes to condensed consolidated financial statements.
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                                 ACCESSITY CORP.
     CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND COMPREHENSIVE LOSS
                                   (UNAUDITED)
<TABLE><CAPTION>

                                                                                       Three Months Ended,
                                                                                  September 30    September 30
                                                                                      2003            2002
                                                                                  ------------    ------------
<S>                                                                               <C>             <C>
Revenue:
              Collision repairs and fees                                          $     29,358    $    927,830
              Hospital fees                                                            164,993            --
                                                                                  ------------    ------------

                           Total revenues                                              194,351         927,830
                                                                                  ------------    ------------

Operating expenses:
              Collision repair expenses                                                  1,057         806,225
              Sales and marketing                                                      105,185         332,570
              General and administrative                                               391,309         985,819
              Non-cash compensation (Note 8)                                              --           (33,767)
              Depreciation and amortization                                             67,733          99,409
                                                                                  ------------    ------------

                           Total operating expenses                                    565,284       2,190,256
                                                                                  ------------    ------------

                                                                                      (370,933)     (1,262,426)

Investment and other income, net of interest expense                                    54,567          57,510
                                                                                  ------------    ------------

Loss from continuing operations before provision for income taxes                     (316,366)     (1,204,916)
Provision for income (tax) benefit (Note 11)                                              --           747,672
                                                                                  ------------    ------------
Loss from continuing operations                                                       (316,366)       (457,244)
                                                                                  ------------    ------------

Discontinued operations (Note 3 and Note 5):
         Disposal of fleet services subsidiary (additional tax expense due to
              change in estimate of effective tax rate in 2002)                           --          (486,589)
         Loss from fleet services subsidiary (additional tax expense
              due to change in estimate of effective tax rate in 2002)                    --            (3,498)
         Income from affinity services subsidiary (net of $114,089 tax in 2002)         26,407          69,772
         Gain on disposal of affinity services subsidiary (no tax effect)               10,000
                                                                                  ------------    ------------
Income (loss) from discontinued operations                                              36,407        (420,315)
                                                                                  ------------    ------------
Net Income (loss)                                                                 $   (279,959)   $   (877,559)

Other comprehensive gain (loss) - unrealized gain (loss) on
              marketable securities, net of reclassification adjustments               (28,808)          9,332
                                                                                  ------------    ------------
Comprehensive loss                                                                $   (308,767)   $   (868,227)
                                                                                  ============    ============

Basic and diluted earnings (loss) per common share:
              Continuing operations                                               $      (0.03)   $      (0.04)
              Discontinued operations                                                     0.00           (0.04)
                                                                                  ------------    ------------
                           Total                                                  $      (0.03)   $      (0.08)
                                                                                  ============    ============

Weighted average number of common shares outstanding                                10,932,595      10,890,458



Effect of dilutive securities, stock options and warrants                                 --              --
                                                                                  ------------    ------------
Weighted average diluted common shares outstanding                                  10,932,595      10,890,458
                                                                                  ============    ============
</TABLE>

            See notes to condensed consolidated financial statements.
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                                 ACCESSITY CORP.
 CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)
                                   (UNAUDITED)

<TABLE><CAPTION>
                                                                                             Nine Months Ended,
                                                                                       September 30    September 30
                                                                                           2003            2002
                                                                                       ------------    ------------
<S>                                                                                    <C>             <C>
Revenue:
               Collision repairs and fees                                              $    219,624    $  2,019,763
               Hospital fees                                                                227,725            --
                                                                                       ------------    ------------

                            Total revenues                                                  447,349       2,019,763
                                                                                       ------------    ------------

Operating expenses:
               Collision repair expenses                                                    102,052       1,739,225
               Sales and marketing                                                          354,157         722,834
               General and administrative                                                 1,321,660       2,387,102
               Non-cash compensation (Note 8)                                                  --          (129,200)
               Depreciation and amortization                                                237,116         283,217
                                                                                       ------------    ------------

                            Total operating expenses                                      2,014,985       5,003,178
                                                                                       ------------    ------------

                                                                                         (1,567,636)     (2,983,415)

Investment and other income, net of interest expense                                        141,125         261,144
                                                                                       ------------    ------------

Loss from continuing operations before provision for income taxes                        (1,426,511)     (2,722,271)
Provision for income (tax) benefit (Note 11)                                                   --         1,474,032
                                                                                       ------------    ------------
Loss from continuing operations                                                          (1,426,511)     (1,248,239)
                                                                                       ------------    ------------

Discontinued operations (Note 3 and Note 5):
               Gain on disposal of fleet services subsidiary (net of taxes
               of $3,345,302 in 2002)                                                          --         2,737,066
               Income from fleet services subsidiary (net of taxes
               of $24,048 in 2002)                                                             --            19,677
               Income from affinity services subsidiary (net of taxes
               of $370,726 in 2002, zero in 2003)                                           214,711         315,803
               Gain on disposal of affinity services subsidiary (no tax effect)              10,000
                                                                                       ------------    ------------
Income from discontinued operations                                                         224,711       3,072,546
                                                                                       ------------    ------------
Net income (loss)                                                                      $ (1,201,800)   $  1,824,307
Other comprehensive gain (loss) - unrealized gain (loss) on
               marketable securities, net of reclassification adjustments                   (49,765)          5,363
                                                                                       ------------    ------------
Comprehensive income (loss)                                                            $ (1,251,565)   $  1,829,670
                                                                                       ============    ============

Basic and diluted earnings (loss) per common share:
               Continuing operations                                                   $      (0.13)   $      (0.11)
               Discontinued operations                                                         0.02            0.28
                                                                                       ------------    ------------
                            Total                                                      $      (0.11)   $       0.17
                                                                                       ============    ============

Weighted average number of common shares outstanding                                     10,890,597      10,910,839
Effect of dilutive securities, stock options and warrants                                      --              --
                                                                                       ------------    ------------
Weighted average diluted common shares outstanding                                       10,890,597      10,910,839
                                                                                       ============    ============
</TABLE>



            See notes to condensed consolidated financial statements
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                                 ACCESSITY CORP.
                 CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
                                   (UNAUDITED)
<TABLE><CAPTION>
                                                                                            Nine Months Ended
                                                                                      September 30     September 30
                                                                                          2003             2002
                                                                                      -----------      -----------
<S>                                                                                   <C>              <C>
Cash flows provided by (used in) operating activities:
      Net income (loss)                                                               $(1,201,800)     $ 1,824,307
                                                                                      ===========      ===========
      Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash
           provided by (used in) operating activities:
                Depreciation and amortization (including bond premium
                    amortization)                                                         256,746          361,927
                Non-cash compensation                                                        --           (129,200)
                Gain on sale of fleet services subsidiary                                    --         (6,082,368)
                Loss on sale of investments                                                14,919             --
                Options granted for services                                                8,955           26,865
                Changes in assets and liabilities:
                         Accounts receivable                                              (23,638)        (151,775)
                         Prepaid expenses and other assets                                243,664          (98,550)
                         Deferred tax asset                                                  --          1,900,000
                         Investment in net assets of discontinued operations                 --            (60,022)
                         Accounts payable                                                (207,948)         186,990
                         Accrued expenses and other current liabilities                  (521,566)         753,660
                                                                                      -----------      -----------
                              Total adjustments                                          (228,868)      (3,292,473)
                                                                                      -----------      -----------
                              Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities      (1,430,668)      (1,468,166)
                                                                                      ===========      ===========

Cash flows provided by (used in) investing activities:
           Purchase of property and equipment                                             (28,693)        (340,393)
           Proceeds from sale of fleet service subsidiary, net                               --          6,174,389
           Proceeds from bond redemption                                                     --          4,929,000
           Proceeds from sale of investments                                            6,349,183             --
           Purchase of Certificate of Deposit                                                             (300,000)
           Purchase of investments                                                     (5,393,699)      (7,558,638)
                                                                                      -----------      -----------

                    Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities                   926,791        2,904,358
                                                                                      ===========      ===========

Cash flows provided by (used in) financing activities:
           Payments under capital lease                                                   (23,621)          (2,427)
           Proceeds from sales of common stock                                             78,750             --
           Proceeds from issuance of preferred stock                                         --          1,000,000
           Purchase of treasury stock                                                        --            (92,696)
                                                                                      ===========      ===========

                    Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities                    55,129          904,877
                                                                                      ===========      ===========

                    Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents                 (448,748)       2,341,069

                    Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period                      908,655          265,408
                                                                                      ===========      ===========

                    Cash and cash equivalents at end of period                        $   459,907      $ 2,606,477
                                                                                      ===========      ===========

                    Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:
                         Cash paid during the period for income taxes                 $      --        $    16,353
                                                                                      ===========      ===========

                         Cash paid during the period for interest                     $     3,733      $      --
                                                                                      ===========      ===========
</TABLE>
            See notes to condensed consolidated financial statements.
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                                 ACCESSITY CORP.

              NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

                      NINE MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2003
                                   (Unaudited)

1. BASIS OF PRESENTATION



- ------------------------

     The information contained in the condensed consolidated financial
statements for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2003 and 2002 is
unaudited, but includes all adjustments, consisting of normal recurring
adjustments, which the Company considers necessary for a fair presentation of
the financial position and the results of operations for these periods.

     The financial statements and notes are presented in accordance with the
requirements of Form 10-QSB, and do not contain certain information included in
the Company's annual statements and notes. These financial statements should be
read in conjunction with the Company's annual financial statements as reported
in its most recent annual report on Form 10-KSB.

     On February 7, 2002 the Company sold its fleet services business (see Note
3), and, as of August 1, 2003, sold its affinity service automobile business
(see Note 5). The accompanying financial statements reflect the results of these
businesses as Discontinued Operations. Accordingly, certain prior period amounts
have been reclassified.

     This report may contain forward-looking statements that involve certain
risks and uncertainties. Factors may arise, including those identified in the
Company's Form 10-KSB for the year ended December 31, 2002, which could cause
the Company's operating results to differ materially from those contained in any
forward-looking statement.

2. BUSINESS OF THE COMPANY
- --------------------------

     The Company, a New York corporation, had been engaged in automotive repair
and collision management from its inception in 1983, but has exited that market
and entered into a medical billing recovery business. It is also continuing to
seek acquisitions that will complement its new business strategy. It divested
its original automotive business in February 2002 (Note 3), which provided
collision repair and fleet management services primarily for numerous Fortune
500 companies.

     The Company also offered collision repair management services during 2002
for the insurance industry through a website on the Internet. Revenues for such
services commenced in December 2001. However, under a strategic partnership
agreement, effective January 2, 2003 (see Note 4), the Company transferred the
operating responsibilities and management of this business to a third party and,
currently, is no longer engaged in collision repair management. It remains
liable for warranties of auto repairs it provided, however warranty costs have
historically not been significant.

     In addition, the Company also sold its remaining automotive business,
effective August 1, 2003, that provided automobile affinity services for
individuals. A definitive
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agreement was completed for the sale of all of the outstanding shares of its
wholly owned subsidiary to the president of the business (see Note 5). The
Company believes that it operated its automotive-related businesses in one
operating segment.

     During the periods presented, the Company provided collision and general
repair programs and appraisal services, for the insurance industry and insurance
carriers. The Company facilitated the repair process for insurance carriers by
installing its internet-based software at customer sites, which permitted them
to enter new claims and to monitor the Company's activities. Once a claim was
initiated on the website, the Company commenced its efforts. This included the
audit of repair estimates, negotiation of the repair price with one of its
suppliers selected from its network of approximately 2,000 providers, management
of time for completion of repair, selection or approval of part specifications,
and obtaining third party appraisals if required. The Company assumed the risks
and responsibilities of the vehicle repair process, from commencement to
completion, for its insurance clients. It warranted all repairs completed
through its network of repair facilities, for periods up to as long as the
driver owned the vehicles and issued warranty certificates for claims processed
through its supplier network. The Company recorded revenues gross in these
circumstances, having acted as the principal in the transaction. As described in
Note 4, this business is now managed by ClaimsNet, Inc. ("ClaimsNet").

     During the third quarter of 2002, the Company began a new business, Sentaur
Corp. ("Sentaur") engaged in medical billing recovery, a new business segment.
The business provides benefits to the hospital segment of the healthcare
industry by recouping inappropriate discounts taken from hospital billings by
institutional or insurance payors. To date, the Company has signed seven
recovery management contracts representing nine hospitals. During the second and
third quarters Sentaur collected $188,000 and $495,000, respectively, on behalf
of its hospital customers. Collections have consistently increased and the
division is profitable based on its direct expenses, and is providing



contribution to corporate overheads which the Company does not allocate to its
operating units (see Note 13). The Company records revenues net for this
business, having acted as an agent of the hospitals.

     Four of the Company's customers currently accounted for approximately 89%
of its 2003 continuing revenues to date, and three of the Company's customers
currently account for 93% of its outstanding trade receivables (including one
from its discontinued operations which accounts for 10%) at September 30, 2003.

3. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS OF FLEET BUSINESS AND PREFERRED STOCK SALE
- ---------------------------------------------------------------------

     On February 7, 2002, following shareholder approval of the Stock Purchase
Agreement ("the Purchase Agreement"), the Company sold all of the outstanding
shares of its former wholly-owned subsidiary, driversshield.com FS Corp. ("FS"),
that operated the collision repair and fleet services business, to PHH Vehicle
Management Services, LLC, d/b/a PHH Arval ("PHH"), a subsidiary of the Cendant
Corporation (NYSE, symbol CD) for $6.3 million in cash and, pursuant to the
Preferred Stock Purchase Agreement, received $1.0 million for the sale of 1000
shares of the Company's Series A Convertible Preferred Stock (the "Preferred
Shares") to PHH. The Preferred Shares can be converted, at the holder's
discretion, into 500,000 shares of the Company's common stock (subject to
adjustments for stock splits, re-capitalization and anti-dilution provisions).
The Preferred Shares have a liquidation preference of 125% of its original
investment value as provided in the Company's Certificate of Incorporation.
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     During the quarter ended March 31, 2002, the Company recorded a pretax gain
on the sale of FS of $6.1 million. The sale of FS impacted the Company's
consolidated balance sheet by reducing accounts receivable and accounts payable
and other accrued liabilities. Certain cash balances were also transferred to
PHH representing primarily customer deposits, prepayments, or funds received by
the Company pending repayments to its customers. Of the gross proceeds paid by
PHH, $175,000 was remitted into an escrow account that was released during 2003.

     Operating results during the nine months ended September 30, 2002, for the
discontinued fleet services operations from the period January 1, 2002 through
February 7, 2002, its date of sale, were as follows:

                                                                   2002
                                                                   ----

Revenues                                                       $1,088,000
Cost of sales                                                    (879,000)
Selling, general and administrative                              (165,000)
                                                               ----------
Income from discontinued operations, pre-tax                   $   44,000

     In accordance with the Transition Services Agreement with PHH, the Company
managed FS operations from the date of its sale through June 30, 2002, and
received fees associated with those activities.

4. STRATEGIC PARTNERSHIP FOR INSURANCE BUSINESS
- -----------------------------------------------

     In December 2002, the Company entered into a Strategic Partnership
Agreement (the "Partnership Agreement"), effective January 2, 2003, with
ClaimsNet, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the CEI Group, Inc. ("CEI"), a
Pennsylvania corporation, in which ClaimsNet assumed the responsibilities of
servicing the operations and management of DriverShield CRM, the business that
provided insurance carriers with collision repair management for their insureds.
During 2003 the Company processed only those claims that were initiated prior to
the effective date, and ClaimsNet has assumed responsibility for new repairs.
The Company did not sell this business, but granted an exclusive license of its
technology, including its website software, that enables insurance customers to
access the vehicle claims management system via the Internet, and a
non-transferable license of its network of repair facilities, as well as
training of its processing methodologies, in order for ClaimsNet to fulfill its
obligations under the Partnership Agreement. As consideration, ClaimsNet remits
a share of the profits to the Company equivalent to 25% of vendor referral fees
for repairs initiated and completed, beginning in March 2003, and 50% of
administrative fees, as defined, on all existing customers, beginning in
February 2003, as well as15% of all administrative and vendor referral fees for
all new customers that use the licensed technology to have their vehicles
repaired. For the quarter ended September 30, 2003 the Company recorded $29,000
in fees, and $82,000 year to date. In connection with the Partnership Agreement,
the Company also agreed to pay $20,000 for certain of its staff personnel costs
during the first two calendar quarters, to assist with this transition. No
further amounts will be paid as the transition period has ended. The contract
also grants ClaimsNet an option to purchase this business, pursuant to a
formula, beginning January 1, 2007.
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5. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS OF AUTOMOBILE AFFINITY SERVICES BUSINESS AND SALE TO
- -------------------------------------------------------------------------------
RELATED PARTY
- -------------

     Upon approval of its board of directors, the Company negotiated a Stock
Purchase Agreement ("the ADS Agreement"), effective August 1, 2003, for the sale
of all of the outstanding shares of its wholly owned subsidiary, DriverShield
ADS Corp. ("ADS") to an employee who is the president of this business. Under
the terms of the ADS Agreement the Company received a one-time fee of $10,000 on
September 30, 2003, plus it will receive reimbursement for its legal fees of
approximately $10,000 incurred for this sale. As a component of the transaction,
the individual purchaser also agreed to forego all future rights to receive
compensation and other benefits associated with his employment contract, which
was to expire in December 2004, but terminated on July 31, 2003. The purchase
price of the ADS business was renegotiated from amounts previously reported due
to changes in the financial performance of the business. All of the employees
and related costs of the ADS business were borne by the purchaser as of the
effective date, and the Company has no continuing management of, or
responsibility for, the operations. The net liabilities of the business at the
closing date, of approximately $31,000, consisting of primarily accounts
receivable and payable, were retained by the Company.

     The purchaser of the ADS business is one of the four directors of the
Company, and a significant shareholder, and will retain his seat on the board of
directors. With the completion of this transaction, the Company has exited from
all operating activities of its various automotive businesses.

     The operating results of the affinity services business have been presented
as discontinued operations in the accompanying financial statements. The Company
recorded a net gain of $10,000 on the transaction in the quarter ended September
30, 2003.

     Operating results during the periods ended September 30, 2003 and 2002, for
the discontinued affinity services operations, and through the date of its sale
on August 1, 2003, were as follows:
<TABLE><CAPTION>
                                                 Three Months Ended           Nine Months Ended
                                                    September 30,               September 30,
                                                ---------------------       ---------------------
                                                  2003         2002           2003         2002
                                                --------     --------       --------     --------
<S>                                             <C>          <C>            <C>          <C>
Revenues                                        $ 41,000     $256,000       $419,000     $914,000
Cost of sales, selling, general and
 administrative expenses                         (15,000)     (72,000)      (204,000)    (227,000)
                                                --------     --------       --------     ---------
Income from discontinued operations, pre-tax    $ 26,000     $184,000       $215,000     $687,000
</TABLE>

6. EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE
- ----------------------------

     Basic earnings (loss) per share is computed by dividing earnings (loss) by
the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the period.
Diluted earnings per share reflect the potential dilution that could occur if
common stock equivalents, such as preferred stock, stock options and warrants,
were exercised. For the three and nine months ended September 30, 2003 and 2002,
respectively, approximately 3,501,000 and 5,200,000 of potentially dilutive
common stock equivalents were excluded
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from the earnings per share calculations, as their inclusion would have been
anti-dilutive. Subsequent to the balance sheet date 540,000 stock options
expired, and 118,000 were exercised, resulting in a balance of 2,843,000 common
stock equivalents that could be dilutive in the future.

7. Stock-Based Compensation Plans
- ---------------------------------

The Company issues stock options to its employees and outside directors pursuant
to stockholder-approved stock option programs, and accounts for stock-based
compensation plans under the intrinsic value method of accounting as defined by
Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to
Employees, and related interpretations. No stock-based employee compensation
cost is reflected in net income (loss) for the three months and nine months
ended September 30, 2003 and 2002, as all options granted under these plans had
an exercise price equal to the fair market value of the underlying common stock
on the date of grant. See Note 8 for variable priced stock options. For pro
forma disclosures, the estimated fair value of the option is amortized over the
vesting period, which range from immediate vesting to three years. The following
table illustrates the effect on net income (loss) and earnings (loss) per share



if we had accounted for our stock option and stock purchase plans under the fair
value method of accounting under Statement 123, as amended by Statement 148:
<TABLE><CAPTION>

                                                     Three Months Ended               Nine Months Ended
                                                       September 30,                    September 30,
                                                 ------------------------         ------------------------
                                                   2003            2002             2003            2002
                                                 --------        --------         --------        --------
<S>                                             <C>             <C>            <C>               <C>
     Net income (loss), as reported             ($279,959)      ($877,559)     ($ 1,201,800)     $1,824,307
     Deduct:  Total stock-based employee
              compensation expense
              determined under fair value-
              based method for all awards,
              net of related tax effects         (133,054)       (168,651)         (408,735)       (462,717)
                                                 --------      ----------        ----------      ----------

     Pro forma net income (loss)                ($413,013)    ($1,046,210)      ($1,610,535)     $1,361,590
                                                 --------      ----------        ----------      ----------

     Earnings (loss) per share:
        Basic, as reported                        ($ .03)        ($ .08)           ($ .11)         $  .17
        Basic, pro forma                          ($ .04)        ($ .10)           ($ .15)         $  .13

        Diluted, as reported                      ($ .03)        ($ .08)           ($ .11)         $  .17
        Diluted, pro forma                        ($ .04)        ($ .10)           ($ .15)         $  .13
</TABLE>

8. NON-CASH COMPENSATION FOR VARIABLE PRICED OPTIONS
- ----------------------------------------------------

     In October 1999 the Company repriced certain options previously granted to
employees and third parties. The original grants gave holders the right to
purchase common shares at prices ranging from $1.00 to $1.24; these were
repriced to prices ranging from $.75 to $.83 per share. At the date of the
repricing, the new exercise price was equal to the fair market value of the
shares (110% of the fair market value in the case of an affiliate). In addition,
in September 2002 the Company granted a five-year extension to the life of
certain fully vested options that had expired. Pursuant to FASB Interpetation
No. 44, the Company accounts for these as variable from the date of the
modification until they are exercised, forfeited or expired, and records the
intrinsic value of such grants.
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There was no charge or credit during the current quarter, or year to date period
in 2003, as the price per share of the Company's common stock continued to trade
at levels below the exercise prices. For the three and nine months ended
September 30, 2002, there were credits to income, resulting from a decline in
the stock price, of $34,000 and $129,000 respectively.

9. INVESTMENTS
- --------------

     Investments at September 30, 2003 consist of available-for-sale securities
that had a fair market value of $4,270,000.

10. PROFORMA INFORMATION
- ------------------------

            Proforma information, assuming that the disposal of FS, and the
disposal of ADS, occurred at the beginning of the earliest quarterly period
presented, has not been presented since the disposals have been accounted for as
discontinued operations, and such amounts have been reclassified from continuing
operations.

11. INCOME TAXES
- ----------------

            At December 31, 2002, the Company had operating loss carry forwards
of approximately $2,000,000 and had established a valuation allowance for the
full amount of its deferred tax asset as it is more likely that the Company will
not be able to realize the tax benefits. To the extent the Company is profitable
in the future periods such carry forwards may be available to offset future
taxable earnings. To the extent the Company is not profitable it would not be
able to realize this benefit.

12. FLORIDA OFFICE LEASE AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION
- ------------------------------------------------------



     The 7,300 square foot building in Coral Springs, Florida which the Company
leases for its headquarters is owned and operated by B & B Lakeview Realty
Corp., whose three shareholders, Barry Siegel, Barry Spiegel and Ken Friedman,
are members of the Company's board of directors. In accordance with the terms of
the lease the Company paid required rentals to B & B Lakeview Realty of
approximately $33,000 in the current quarter, and approximately $99,000 year to
date. Pursuant to the lease agreement, the Company is also required to pay
various building maintenance, insurance and other specified charges, as
incurred, to other unrelated vendors. It was also required to establish a
$300,000 certificate of deposit as described in the Liquidity and Capital
Resources section of Managements Discussion and Analysis or Plan of Operation.

13. SEGMENT INFORMATION
- -----------------------

            The Company currently reports two segments, medical and automotive.
As described in Note 4, however, the Company participates in the automotive
segment only through a profit-sharing arrangement; it no longer operates, or has
liability for, the current
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(Note 13. SEGMENT INFORMATION, Continued)

activities of the automotive segment, which functions under the managerial
autonomy of ClaimsNet, pursuant to its contractual arrangement with the Company.
The Company manages these segments separately since each serves different
markets and users, as described in Note 2.

            All of the Company's sales are made within the domestic United
States. Segment information follows.

                               Three Months Ended         Nine Months Ended
                                 September 30,              September 30,
                            -----------------------    -----------------------
                               2003         2002          2003         2002
                            -----------------------    -----------------------
Revenue:
      Medical               $  165,000   $     ---     $  228,000   $     ---
      Automotive                29,000      928,000       219,000    2,020,000
                            ----------   ----------    ----------   ----------
      Consolidated total    $  194,000   $  928,000    $  447,000   $2,020,000

Segment profit (loss):
     Medical (1)            $   25,000   $     ---     $ (156,000)  $     ---
     Automotive (1)              3,000     (283,000)      (24,000)    (646,000)
     Other/corporate (1)      (344,000)    (922,000)   (1,246,000)  (2,076,000)
                            ----------   ----------    ----------   ----------
     Consolidated total     $ (316,000) $(1,205,000)  $(1,426,000) $(2,722,000)

Identifiable assets:
     Medical                                           $  155,000   $     ---
     Automotive                                           148,000      771,000
     Other, corporate                                   5,549,000    7,924,000
                                                       ----------   ----------
     Consolidated total                                $5,852,000   $8,695,000

(1) The Company does not allocate taxes, other income, interest income or
expense, or its corporate general and administrative expenses (including such
items as rent, utilities, legal, accounting and auditing and others) to its
individual segments. The segment profit reflects those costs (including selling,
general and administrative) that are specifically identifiable with the
operating activities of the segment. The remaining amounts are included in the
category "Other/ Corporate," and reconcile to the Company's consolidated pretax
loss from continuing operations, in accordance with FAS 131.
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ITEM 2. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OR PLAN OF OPERATION
- -----------------------------------------------------------------

Forward Looking Statements - Cautionary Factors

     The following discussion and analysis should be read in conjunction with
the Company's financial statements and the notes hereto appearing elsewhere in
this report. This report contains forward-looking statements within the meaning
of the Private Securities Litigation Act of 1995. The Company cautions that



forward-looking statements are not guarantees of future performance and involve
certain risks and uncertainties (including those identified in "Risk Factors" in
the Company's Form 10-KSB for the year ended December 31, 2002) and that actual
results may differ materially from those in the forward-looking statements as a
result of various factors. Except for the historical information and statements
contained in this Report, the matters and items set forth in this Report are
forward looking statements.

Three Months ended September 30, 2003 (the "2003 Quarter") Compared to Three
- ----------------------------------------------------------------------------
Months ended September 30, 2002 (the "2002 Quarter").
- -----------------------------------------------------

     The 2003 Quarter reflected a net loss of $280,000 compared to a net loss of
$878,000 in the 2002 Quarter. Loss from continuing operations was $316,000
versus a loss of $457,000 in the 2002 Quarter, after a tax benefit of $748,000.
Excluding the non-cash impact of the tax benefits, the pretax loss from
continuing operations was $316,000 in the 2003 Quarter versus a pretax loss of
$1,205,000 in the 2002 Quarter, a 74% decrease in losses. Basic and diluted loss
per share from continuing operations was $.03 and $.04 per share in the 2003 and
2002 Quarters respectively. Basic and diluted loss per share from discontinued
operations was $.04 in the 2002 Quarter and zero in the 2003 Quarter.

Revenues from Continuing Operations
- -----------------------------------

     Revenues were $194,000 in the 2003 Quarter, versus $928,000 in the 2002
Quarter, representing a decrease of $734,000 or 79%. The Company's revenues
decreased by $899,000 in its automotive segment, from $928,000 in the 2002
Quarter to $29,000 in the 2003 Quarter as a result of transferring the operating
responsibility of its CRM business to ClaimsNet, effective January 2003.
However, as described below, the significant reduction in infrastructure costs
eliminated the direct expenses and losses from this business segment (excluding
corporate overhead which the Company does not allocate to its operating units).
The revenues the Company recorded in the 2003 Quarter reflect referral fees
associated with claims processed by ClaimsNet. Offsetting this reduction in
revenues from its automotive segment was an increase in revenues of $165,000
from Sentaur, the Company's new financial recovery business for hospitals. There
was no comparable amount in the 2002 Quarter.

Operating Income and Expenses from Continuing Operations
- --------------------------------------------------------

     Pretax losses from continuing operations decreased 74%, to $316,000 in the
2003 Quarter compared to a pretax loss of $1,205,000 in the 2002 Quarter, a
decrease in losses of $889,000. The comparative amounts are described below.

     Collision repair and fees earned relating to its automotive repair
business, net of collision repair costs, decreased $94,000 to $28,000 in the
2003 Quarter versus $122,000 in the 2002 Quarter resulting from the transfer of
the business to ClaimsNet, described above.
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     Selling expenses decreased by $228,000 (68%), to $105,000 in the 2003
Quarter, from $333,000 in the 2002 Quarter. This was primarily the result of
increased costs for marketing, personnel and related travel activities of
Sentaur of approximately $37,000, the Company's new medical billing recovery
business, offset by the elimination of costs of its CRM automotive industry
segment, which is now operated by ClaimsNet.

     General and administrative expenses decreased by $595,000 (60%), from
$986,000 in the 2002 Quarter to $391,000 in the 2003 Quarter resulting primarily
from lower personnel costs and other various expenses no longer incurred due to
the reduced scale of operations related to the elimination of its automotive
segment. The non-cash charges associated with recording the impact of variable
stock option grants resulted in a credit of $34,000 in the 2002 Quarter; there
was no comparable charge or credit in the 2003 Quarter.

     Depreciation declined $31,000, from $99,000 in the 2002 Quarter to $68,000
in the 2003 Quarter, resulting from assets which became fully depreciated during
2003.

     Investment and other income, net, decreased $3,000 from $58,000 in the 2002
Quarter to $55,000 in the 2003 Quarter primarily resulting from decreased
interest income caused by declining rates and lower investment balances.

Discontinued Operations
- -----------------------

     Discontinued operations in the 2002 Quarter, relating to the sale of the
fleet services subsidiary which was sold at a significant gain, reflected a
charge of $490,000 due to an increase in the tax calculation resulting from a
change in estimate of the effective 2002 tax rate (this was a non-cash adjusting



entry). These additional tax amounts were offset in part from income from
discontinued operations of the affinity services business of $70,000, the net
amount of which was also impacted by the revised tax calculations. In the 2003
Quarter the affinity services business was the only discontinued operation,
reflecting income from operations of $26,000, and a $10,000 gain from its
disposal.

Nine Months ended September 30, 2003 (the "2003 Period") Compared to Nine Months
- --------------------------------------------------------------------------------
ended September 30, 2002 (the "2002 Period").
- ---------------------------------------------

The 2003 Period reflected a net loss of $1,202,000 compared to net income of
$1,824,000 in the 2002 Period. The 2002 earnings include the impact of the gain
on sale of the fleet business in discontinued operations. Loss from continuing
operations was $1,427,000 in the 2003 Period versus a loss of $1,248,000 in the
2002 Period, after a non-cash tax benefit of $1,474,000 in 2002. Excluding this
non-cash adjustment, the loss from pretax continuing operations decreased from
$2,722,000 in the 2002 Period to $1,427,000 in the 2003 Period, a 48% decrease,
or $1,295,000. Basic and diluted loss per share from continuing operations was
$.13 and $.11 per share in the 2003 and 2002 Period, respectively. Basic and
diluted earnings per share from discontinued operations, was $.28 in the 2002
Period, versus $.02 in the 2003 Period. The discontinued operations in the 2003
Period reflect the operating results of the affinity services business that was
sold effective August 1, 2003.
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Revenues from Continuing Operations
- -----------------------------------

     Revenues were $447,000 in the 2003 Period, versus $2,020,000 in the 2002
Period, representing a decrease of $1,573,000, or 78%. A decrease of $1,801,000
in the automotive segment, from $2,020,000 to $219,000, was due to the transfer
of the operating responsibility of its CRM business to ClaimsNet, effective
January 1, 2003. However, as described below, the significant reduction in
infrastructure costs eliminated the direct expenses and losses from this
business segment (excluding corporate overhead which the Company does not
allocate to its operating units). In the 2003 Period the Company recorded its
remaining in-process claims, along with $82,000 in fees it received from
ClaimsNet. The Company's new subsidiary Sentaur, providing financial recovery
for hospitals, recorded revenues of $228,000 in the 2003 Period; there was no
comparable amount in the prior year.

Operating Income and Expenses from Continuing Operations
- --------------------------------------------------------

     Pretax loss from continuing operations was $1,427,000 in the 2003 Period, a
decrease in losses of $1,295,000, or 48%, compared to a pretax loss of
$2,722,000 in the 2002 Period. The comparative amounts are described below.

     Collision repair and claim fee revenues, net of collision repair costs,
decreased $163,000 to $118,000 in the 2003 Period versus $281,000 in the 2002
Period resulting from the transfer of this business to ClaimsNet, as previously
described. However, as described below, the reduction in infrastructure costs
associated with the automotive segment resulted in the elimination of losses for
this business by the third quarter of the 2003 Period.

     Selling expenses decreased by $369,000 (51%), to $354,000 in the 2003
Period, from $723,000 in the 2002 Period. This was primarily the result of the
elimination of infrastructure sales costs of its CRM insurance industry business
($547,000), which is now operated by ClaimsNet, offset by increased costs for
marketing, personnel and related travel activities of Sentaur, the Company's new
medical billing recovery business.

     General and administrative expenses decreased by $1,065,000 (45%), from
$2,387,000 in the 2002 Period to $1,322,000 in the 2003 Period resulting
primarily from various infrastructure expenses and personnel costs no longer
needed without the automotive CRM business and, to a lesser extent, from the
$250,000 bonus provided to the CEO upon the sale of the fleet business in 2002
for which there was no comparable payment in the 2003 Period. The non-cash
charges associated with recording the impact of variable stock option grants
resulted in a credit (income) of $129,000 in the 2002 Period; there was no
comparable credit in the 2003 Period.

     Depreciation declined $46,000, from $283,000 in the 2002 Period to $237,000
in the 2003 Period, resulting from assets that were fully depreciated during
2003.

     Investment and other income, net, decreased $120,000 from $261,000 in the
2002 Period to $141,000 in the 2003 Period primarily resulting from lower
investment balances and a loss on a sale of $15,000, as well as by declining
interest rates.
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Discontinued Operations
- -----------------------

     Income, net of income taxes, from discontinued operations in the 2002
Period was $3,073,000. This was comprised of $20,000 in income from business
activities of the fleet operations, $2,737,000 on the gain on the sale of this
business that was sold in February 2002, and, income from the activities of the
affinity services business of $316,000.

     In the 2003 Period discontinued operations reflects income of $225,000 from
the affinity services business which was sold effective August 1, 2003. The
decrease in profitability in the affinity services business resulted from sales
decreases of $495,000 or 54%, to $419,000 in the 2003 Period, as compared to
$914,000 for the 2002 Period, reflecting a large percentage of members that did
not renew their memberships.

Liquidity and Capital Resources
- -------------------------------

     As of September 30, 2003 the Company had cash and cash equivalents of
$460,000. The Company also holds shares in a number of highly liquid mutual
funds valued at $4,270,000. Working capital of the Company as of September 30,
2003, was $4,541,000 and its working capital ratio was 11:1.

     In connection with the Company's rental of office space in Florida, in July
2002, the Company established a $300,000 certificate of deposit with a Florida
bank for the five and a half year term of the lease, as a guarantee of its
future rental commitments. Such amounts were excluded from liquidity and working
capital, described above, and presented as restricted certificate of deposit.
The certificate of deposit declines as the remaining rental commitment declines,
as follows; the balance of the certificate will be $200,000 after the 36th
month, $100,000 after the 48th month, and zero after 60 months.

     The Company's Board of Directors approved a stock repurchase program
whereby the Company may purchase up to 500,000 shares of its common shares
traded on the Nasdaq SmallCap Market. Since the repurchase program was approved,
during the third quarter of 2002, the Company acquired 93,000 shares at a cost
of $93,000.

     The Company has no major expenditures that it currently anticipates for
capital equipment needs, however it is expending funds due to operating losses,
which have been declining. While the Company's only current operating entity,
Sentaur, is now providing profit contribution to the Company, as Sentaur begins
to add more to its customer base it may require additional funds for personnel
expenses and software systems development, but this would occur in anticipation
of future revenue growth. In addition, the Company has been pursuing acquisition
candidates and may continue to incur varying levels of expenses in connection
with each evaluation. These may range from minor amounts for such expenses as an
initial business trip or, more extensively, multiple trips for due diligence,
legal review and lien and judgment searches. Should the Company complete an
acquisition, it may use a significant amount of its funds to either pay a
portion of the purchase price and/or expand the business it acquires.

     The Company believes that its present liquidity will enable it to continue
to support its operations for the next twelve months and for an extended period
thereafter depending on the extent of use of its funds to build existing
businesses or possible use of funds to develop or acquire new businesses.
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ITEM 3. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
- -------------------------------

EVALUATION OF DISCLOSURE CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES.

            Under the supervision and with the participation of our management,
including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, we evaluated
the effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15 and 15d-15 under the Exchange Act) as of
the end of the period covered by the report. Based upon that evaluation required
by paragraph Rule 13a-15 or Rule 15d-15, the Chief Executive Officer and Chief
Financial Officer concluded that, our disclosure controls and procedures were
effective in timely alerting them to the material information relating to us (or
our consolidated subsidiaries) required to be included in our periodic SEC
filings.

CHANGES IN INTERNAL CONTROLS.

            There were no significant changes made in our internal controls
during the period covered by this report, or to our knowledge, in other factors
that could significantly affect these controls subsequent to the date of their
evaluation.
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                           PART II. OTHER INFORMATION
                           --------------------------

ITEM 6. EXHIBITS AND REPORTS ON FORM 8-K
- ----------------------------------------

(a)  EXHIBITS

        10.1    Stock Purchase Agreement dated as of August 1, 2003 by and among
                American Member Corp. and Accessity Corp.

        10.2    Employment Termination Agreement dated August 1, 2003 by and
                between Accessity Corp., f/k/a drivershield.com Corp. and Barry
                J. Spiegel

        10.3    Web Site Linking Agreement dated August 1, 2003 by and among
                Accessity Corp., American Member Corp. and DriverShield ADS
                Corp.

        31.1    Certification of Chief Executive Officer

        31.2    Certification of Chief Financial Officer

        32.1    Certification of Chief Executive Officer

        32.2    Certification of Chief Financial Officer

(b)  REPORTS ON FORM 8-K

     A Current Report on Form 8-K dated August 19, 2003 containing a press
release that was issued announcing the financial results of the registrant for
the period ended June 30, 2003.

                                   SIGNATURES

     Pursuant to the requirements of the Exchange Act, the registrant has duly
caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly
authorized.

                                       Accessity Corp.

Date: November 14, 2003                By: Barry Siegel
                                           ------------------------
                                           Chairman of the Board, Secretary and
                                           Chief Executive Officer

Date: November 14, 2003                By: Philip B. Kart
                                           ------------------------
                                           Senior Vice President, Treasurer and
                                           Chief Financial Officer
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                American Member Corp. and Accessity Corp.

        10.2    Employment Termination Agreement dated August 1, 2003 by and
                between Accessity Corp., f/k/a drivershield.com Corp. and Barry
                J. Spiegel
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                Accessity Corp., American Member Corp. and DriverShield ADS
                Corp.
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                                                                    EXHIBIT 10.1
                                                                    ------------

                            STOCK PURCHASE AGREEMENT

                                      among

                              american member corp.

                                       and

                                 ACCESSITY CORP.

                                       and

                             DriverShield ADS Corp.

                           Dated as of August 1, 2003

COMPANY DISCLOSURE SCHEDULES

         Section:

           2.4               Consents and Approval
           2.6               Undisclosed Liabilities
           2.7               Absence of Certain Changes
           2.8               Litigation
           2.9               Compliance with Law (Permits)
           2.10              Employee Benefit Plans
           2.11              Labor and Employment Matters
           2.12              Taxes
           2.13              Contracts
           2.14              Real Property
           2.15              Intellectual Property
           2.17              Environmental Compliance
           2.18              Affiliate and Non-Arm's Length Transactions
           2.19              Guarantees
           2.20              Customers
           2.24              Property/Assets/Liabilities
           2.29              Bank Accounts
           4.1               Conduct of the Business of the Company
           4.24              Transferred Assets/Liabilities
           5.3(d)            List of "Company Employees"
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EXHIBITS
- --------

Exhibit A                                 DriverShield logo

Exhibit B                                 Trademark License Agreement

Exhibit C                                 Security Agreement

Exhibit D                                 Employment Termination Agreement

Exhibit E                                 Web Site Linking Agreement
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STOCK PURCHASE AGREEMENT, dated as of August 1, 2003 (the "Agreement"), by and
among AMERICAN MEMBER CORP., a Florida corporation (the "Buyer"), and Accessity
Corp., a New York corporation (the "Seller"), and DriverShield ADS Corp., a New
York corporation (the "Company").

            WHEREAS, the Seller is the record and beneficial owner of all of the
issued and outstanding shares of capital stock of the Company;

            WHEREAS, the Company's principal business is to provide consumer
automobile discount club programs through financial institutions and membership
organizations. (the "Business");

            WHEREAS, the Seller desires to sell to the Buyer, and the Buyer
desires to purchase from the Seller, all of the issued and outstanding shares of
the capital stock of the Company; and

            NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual
representations, warranties, covenants and agreements contained herein, and for
other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is
hereby acknowledged, and subject to the terms and conditions hereof, the parties
intending to be legally bound, hereby agree as follows:

                                    ARTICLE I

PURCHASE AND SALE OF STOCK
- --------------------------

            Section 1.1 Purchase and Sale of Stock. On the Closing Date, upon
the terms and subject to the conditions of this Agreement, the Seller shall sell
to the Buyer, and the Buyer shall purchase from the Seller, the Company Shares.
For the purposes of this Agreement, the term "Company Shares" shall mean all of



the issued and outstanding shares of the common stock, no par value per share,
of the Company. Additionally, the Seller hereby grants to the Company a
perpetual non-exclusive license to use its proprietary auto body shop network
for the operation of the Business (the "Shop License"). Under the Shop License,
the Company shall be provided access to the data base of members of the auto
body shop network and be permitted to make copies of all contracts between the
Seller and each member of the auto body shop network..

            Section 1.2 Sale of Web Site. Seller shall sell to the Buyer, and
the Buyer shall purchase from the Seller, all of Seller's right, title and
interest to the web site, having Internet domain names,
www.drivershieldautoclub.com, including the source code for the computer
programs used to operate the websites, and shall also assign to Buyer all
contracts for hosting those websites. Additionally, the Seller shall use all
commercially reasonable attempts to terminate its obligations to provide web
site links to ClaimsNet, Inc. and PHH Vehicle Management Services, LLC, and
following the termination of these obligations, the Seller shall transfer
ownership to the Company of the Internet domain names: www.drivershield.com and
www.driversshield.com.
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            Section 1.3 Transfer of Telephone Numbers. Seller shall transfer the
following telephone numbers to the Company: (800) 276-5662, (954) 340-3606,
(954) 340-3003, (954) 340-3607.

            Section 1.4 Purchase Price. The Buyer and the Company shall pay the
Seller Ten Thousand Dollars ($10,000) and reimburse the Seller for all its
reasonable attorney's fees incurred during the course of negotiating and
consummating this transaction (the "Purchase Price") payable by the Buyer
anytime prior to October 1, 2003.

            Section 1.5 Time and Place of Closing. Upon the terms and subject to
the conditions of this Agreement, the closing of the transactions contemplated
by this Agreement (the "Closing") will take place at the offices of Seller at
12514 West Atlantic Blvd, Coral Springs, Florida 33071 within three (3) business
days after all of the conditions to each party's obligations specified in
Article V hereof have been satisfied or waived by the party entitled to waive
the applicable condition, or at such other date, place or time as the parties
may agree in writing, on or about September 5, 2003. The date on which the
Closing occurs and the transactions contemplated hereby become effective is
referred to herein as the "Closing Date".

            Section 1.6 [Intentionally omitted]

            Section 1.7 Deliveries by the Seller. Subject to the terms and
conditions hereof, at the Closing, the Seller will deliver the following to the
Buyer:

(a) stock certificates representing the Company Shares, duly endorsed (or
accompanied by duly executed stock powers) for transfer to the Buyer and
registered on the stock books of the Company in the name of the Buyer;

(b) the officer's certificate provided for in Section 5.3(h) of this Agreement;

(c) [Intentionally omitted]

(d) [Intentionally omitted]

(e) a certificate of the Secretary of the Seller reasonably satisfactory in form
and substance to the Buyer setting forth resolutions of the Board of Directors,
authorizing the execution and delivery of this Agreement and the consummation of
the transactions contemplated hereby and certifying that such
resolutions/authorization have been duly made and have not been rescinded or
amended as of the Closing Date.

(f) all of the books and records of the Seller relating primarily to the Company
and the Business, including, without limitation, all minute books and stock
ledgers relating to the Company;
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(g) if requested by Buyer, letters of resignation and releases reasonably



satisfactory to the Buyer effective as of the Closing Date from each director
and officer of the Company;

(h) the FIRPTA Certificate provided for in Section 4.6(k) of this Agreement; and

(i) all other documents, instruments and writings required to be delivered by
the Seller at or prior to the Closing Date pursuant to this Agreement.

            Section 1.8 Deliveries by the Buyer. Subject to the terms and
conditions hereof, at the Closing, the Buyer will deliver the following to the
Seller:

(a) the officer's certificate provided for in Section 5.2(c) of this Agreement;

(b) a certificate of the Secretary of the Buyer, reasonably satisfactory in form
and substance to the Seller setting forth resolutions of the Board of Directors
of the Buyer authorizing the execution and delivery of this Agreement and the
consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby and certifying that such
resolutions have been duly made and have not been rescinded or amended as of the
Closing Date; and

(c) all other documents, instruments and writings required to be delivered by
the Buyer at or prior to the Closing Date pursuant to this Agreement.

            Section 1.9 Deliveries by the Buyer and Seller. Subject to the terms
and conditions hereof, at the Closing, the Buyer and Seller will execute and
deliver, one to the other, the following:

(a) the Trademark License Agreement provided for in Section 4.13 of this
Agreement;

(b) the Security Agreement provided for in Section 4.14

(c) the Employment Termination Agreement provided for in Section 4.15.

(d) the Web Site Linking Agreement provided for in Section 4.18.

                                   ARTICLE II

          REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF THE SELLER AND THE COMPANY
          ------------------------------------------------------------

            The Seller and the Company hereby represent and warrant, jointly and
severally, to the Buyer as follows:

            Section 2.1 Organization; Etc. The Seller and the Company (i) are
corporations validly existing and in good standing under the laws of their
respective jurisdictions of incorporation, (ii) have all requisite corporate
power and authority to own, lease and operate their respective properties and
assets and to carry on their respective businesses as they are now being
conducted,
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and (iii) are duly qualified and in good standing to do business in each
jurisdiction in which the nature of their respective businesses or the
ownership, operation or leasing of their respective properties makes such
qualification necessary. The Seller has previously delivered or made available
to the Buyer true and complete copies of the organizational documents or
comparable governing instruments (including all amendments to each of the
foregoing) of the Company as in effect on the date hereof.

            Section 2.2 Authority Relative to this Agreement. Each of the Seller
and the Company has all necessary corporate power and authority to execute and
deliver this Agreement, the Trademark License Agreement, the Security Agreement,
the Employment Termination Agreement and the Web Site Linking Agreement
(collectively, the "Transaction Documents"), to perform its obligations
hereunder and to consummate the transactions contemplated hereby and thereby.
The execution and delivery of this Agreement and the other Transaction Documents
by the Seller and the Company and the consummation by the Seller and the Company
of the transactions contemplated hereby and thereby have been duly and validly
authorized by all necessary corporate action, and no other corporate proceedings
on the part of the Seller or the Company and no filings or recordations required



by the New York Business Corporation Law are necessary to authorize this
Agreement or to consummate the transactions contemplated hereby and thereby.
This Agreement and the other Transaction Documents have been or will be duly
executed and delivered by each of the Seller and the Company and, assuming the
due authorization, execution and delivery by the other parties hereto, each such
agreement constitutes a legal, valid and binding obligations of such party,
enforceable against such party in accordance with its terms, subject to the
effect of any applicable bankruptcy, moratorium, insolvency, reorganization or
other similar law affecting the enforceability of creditors' rights generally
and to the effect of general principles of equity which may limit the
availability of remedies (whether in a proceeding at law or in equity) (the
"Bankruptcy Exception").

            Section 2.3 Capitalization.

(a) The authorized capital stock of the Company consists of 200 shares of common
stock, no par value per share. As of the date hereof there are 100 of such
shares issued and outstanding, not including treasury shares, all of which are
owned by Seller. At the Closing, Seller shall provide a Certificate of Secretary
setting forth the number of shares of common stock of the Company issued and
outstanding as of the Closing Date. The Company Shares have been duly authorized
and validly issued and are fully paid and non-assessable. Except as set forth in
this Section 2.3 and except for the Company Shares, there are no outstanding (i)
shares of capital stock or voting securities of the Company, (ii) securities of
the Company convertible into or exchangeable for shares of capital stock or
voting securities of the Company, (iii) options or other rights or agreements,
either directly or indirectly, to acquire from the Company, or other obligation
of the Company to issue, any capital stock, voting securities or securities
convertible into or exchangeable for capital stock or voting securities of the
Company or (iv) additional classes of capital stock or other ownership interests
in the Company. There are no preemptive rights, options, warrants, stock
appreciation rights (or other securities that have their value tied to
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any other securities of the Company), or other rights, agreements, arrangements
or commitments of any character to which the Seller or the Company is a party or
by which the Seller or the Company is bound relating to the issued or unissued
capital stock of the Company or obligating the Company to issue or sell any
shares of capital stock of, or other equity interests in, the Company.

(b) The Seller is the record and beneficial owner of all of the Company Shares,
free and clear of any Liens other than Permitted Liens and any other limitation
or restriction (including any restriction on the right to vote, sell or
otherwise dispose of such shares) and such shares constitute 100% of the issued
and outstanding shares of the Company. The Seller will transfer and deliver to
the Buyer at the Closing valid title to the Company Shares free and clear of any
Liens other than Permitted Liens) and any such limitation or restriction. The
Company does not own, directly or indirectly, any equity or voting interest in,
or otherwise control, any Person, and has no agreement or commitment to acquire
any such equity or voting interest. For the Purposes of this Agreement, "Person"
shall mean a natural person, partnership, corporation, limited liability
company, business trust, joint stock company, trust, unincorporated association,
joint venture, Governmental Entity or other entity or organization.

            "Liens" shall mean any lien, security interest, mortgage, pledge,
hypothecation, charge, preemptive right, voting trust, imposition, covenant,
condition, right of first refusal, easement or conditional sale or other title
retention agreement or other restriction; provided, however, that Liens shall
not include any Permitted Lien.

            "Permitted Lien" shall mean, (a) Liens imposed by any Governmental
Entity for Taxes, assessments or charges not yet due and payable or which are
being contested in good faith and by appropriate proceedings if adequate
reserves with respect thereto are maintained on the books of the Company in
accordance with GAAP; (b) carriers', warehousemen's, mechanics', materialmen's,
repairmen's or other like Liens arising in the ordinary course of business which
are not overdue for a period of more than thirty (30) days or which are being
contested in good faith and by appropriate proceedings, if adequate reserves
with respect thereto are maintained on the books of the Company in accordance
with GAAP; (c) pledges or deposits in connection with worker's compensation,
unemployment insurance and other social security legislation; or (d) deposits to
secure the performance of any or all of the following: bids, trade contracts



(other than for borrowed money), leases, statutory obligations, surety and
appeal bonds, performance bonds and other obligations of a like nature incurred
in the ordinary course of business.

            Section 2.4 Consents and Approvals; No Violations. Except as set
forth in Section 2.4 of the Company Disclosure Schedule, neither the execution
and delivery of this Agreement and other Transaction Documents by the Seller or
the Company, nor the consummation by the Seller or the Company of the
transactions contemplated hereby or thereby will (a) conflict with or result in
any breach of any provision of the certificate or articles of incorporation, as
the case may be, or by-laws of the Seller or the Company, (b) result in a
violation or breach of, or constitute (with or without due notice or lapse of
time or both) a default (or give rise to any right
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of termination, cancellation or acceleration) under, or require any consent
under, any indenture, license, contract, agreement or other instrument or
obligation to which the Seller or the Company is a party or by which either of
them or any of their respective properties or assets are bound, (c) violate any
order, writ, injunction, decree or award rendered by any Governmental Entity (as
hereinafter defined) or any statute, rule or regulation (collectively, "Laws"
and, individually, a "Law") applicable to the Seller or the Company or any of
their respective properties or assets, or (d) require any filing with, or the
obtaining of any permit, authorization, consent or approval of, any domestic or
foreign, federal, state or local governmental or regulatory authority, (a
"Governmental Entity") or (e) result in the creation of a Lien on any property
or asset of the Company pursuant to, any note, bond, mortgage, indenture,
contract, agreement, lease, license, permit, franchise or other instrument or
obligation. The execution and delivery of this Agreement by the Seller and the
Company do not, and the performance by the Seller and the Company of its
obligations hereunder and the consummation of the transactions contemplated
hereby will not, require any consent, approval, authorization or permit of, or
filing by the Seller or the Company with or notification to, any Governmental
Entity, except pursuant to those applicable requirements of the Exchange Act,
the Securities Act, state securities or "blue sky" laws, the rules and
regulations of The Nasdaq SmallCap Market ("Nasdaq"), state takeover laws, and
any filing or recordation required by the New York Business Corporation Law, all
as set forth in Section 2.4 of the Company Disclosure Schedule.

            Section 2.5 SEC Reports; Financial Statements.

(a) The Seller has timely filed all forms, reports, statements and documents
required to be filed by it pursuant to the Securities Act of 1933, as amended,
and the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and other applicable
Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC") and Nasdaq rules and regulations (A)
with the SEC and Nasdaq since December 31, 2000 (collectively, together with any
such forms, reports, statements and documents the Seller may file subsequent to
the date hereof until the Closing, the "Seller Reports") and (B) with any other
Governmental Entities. Each Seller Report (i) was prepared in all respects in
accordance with the requirements of the Securities Act, the Exchange Act, or the
respective rules and regulations promulgated thereunder, or the rules and
regulations of Nasdaq, as the case may be, and (ii) did not at the time it was
filed (or, in the case of registration statements filed under the Securities
Act, at the time of effectiveness) contain any untrue statement of a material
fact or omit to state a material fact required to be stated therein or necessary
in order to make the statements made therein, in the light of the circumstances
under which they were made, not misleading. Each form, report, statement and
document referred to in clause (B) of this paragraph was prepared in all
material respects in accordance with the requirements of applicable Law.

(b) Each of the financial statements (including, in each case, any notes
thereto) contained in the Seller Reports was prepared in accordance with GAAP
(except as may be permitted by Form 10-QSB under the Exchange Act) applied on a
consistent basis throughout the periods indicated (except as may be indicated in
the notes thereto) and each presented fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Seller as at the respective dates thereof and its
results of
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operations, shareholders' equity and cash flows for the respective periods
indicated therein, except as otherwise noted therein (subject, in the case of



unaudited statements, to normal and recurring immaterial year-end adjustments).

(c) Except as and to the extent set forth or reserved against on the balance
sheet of the Seller as reported in the Seller Reports, including the notes
thereto, the Seller has no liabilities or obligations of any nature (whether
direct, indirect, known, unknown, accrued, unaccrued, absolute, contingent or
otherwise) that would be required to be reflected on a balance sheet or in notes
thereto prepared in accordance with GAAP, except for immaterial liabilities or
obligations incurred in the ordinary course of business consistent with past
practice since December 31, 2000.

(d) The Seller previously has delivered to the Buyer true and complete copies of
the unaudited balance sheets of the Company as of December 31, 2002 and trial
balance sheets as of March 31, 2003 (the "Balance Sheets"), together with an
unaudited statement of income for the twelve (12) months ended March 31, 2003
(collectively the "Financial Statements"). The Financial Statements have been
prepared from, are in accordance with and accurately reflect, the books and
records of the Company, comply in all material respects with applicable
accounting requirements, have been prepared in accordance with GAAP applied on a
consistent basis during the periods involved and fairly present, in all material
respects, the financial position and the results of operations of the Company as
of the times and for the periods referred to therein. For the purposes of this
Agreement, "GAAP" shall mean United States generally accepted accounting
principles. The parties acknowledge that the Seller does not allocate certain
corporate expenses to the unaudited statements of its subsidiaries.

            Section 2.6 Absence of Undisclosed Liabilities of the Company.
Except as and to the extent set forth or reserved against on the Financial
Statements, including the notes thereto, the Company has no liabilities or
obligations of any nature (whether direct, indirect, known, unknown, accrued,
unaccrued, absolute, contingent or otherwise) that would be required to be
reflected on a balance sheet or in notes thereto prepared in accordance with
GAAP, except for immaterial liabilities or obligations incurred in the ordinary
course of business consistent with past practice since December 31, 2001.

            Section 2.7  [Intentionally omitted]

            Section 2.8 Litigation. Except as set forth in Section 2.8 of the
Company Disclosure Schedule, there is no action, suit, proceeding or
governmental investigation (each, a "Legal Proceeding") pending or, to the
knowledge of the Seller or the Company, threatened against either of the Seller
or the Company, including Legal Proceedings which could reasonably be expected
to effect Seller's ability to enter into this Agreement, by or before any court
or Governmental Entity. There is no Legal Proceeding pending or, to the
knowledge of the Seller or the Company, threatened, against either of the Seller
or the Company that questions the validity of this Agreement or any action taken
or to be taken by the Seller or the Company in connection with the consummation
of the transactions contemplated hereby. Except as set forth
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in Section 2.8 of the Company Disclosure Schedule, there is not outstanding or,
to the knowledge of the Seller or the Company, threatened, any orders,
judgments, decrees or injunctions issued by any Governmental Entity against,
affecting or naming the Company (or the Seller, if it could reasonably be
expected to effect Seller's ability to enter into this Agreement).

            Section 2.9 Compliance with Law. The Company is in compliance with
all Applicable Laws, and neither the Seller nor the Company has notice or a
reasonable basis to believe that the Company has in any material respect
violated any such Applicable Law. The Company has all permits, licenses, and
other governmental authorizations, consents, and approvals necessary to conduct
its business as currently conducted (collectively, the "Permits"). All of the
Permits are identified in Section 2.9 of the Company Disclosure Schedule. The
Company is not in violation of the terms of any Permit, nor has the Company
engaged in any activity that is reasonably likely to cause revocation or
suspension of any such Permit and no action or proceeding looking to or
contemplating the revocation or suspension of any such Permit is pending or, to
the Seller's knowledge, threatened. For the purposes of this Agreement, the term
"Applicable Law" shall mean any domestic or foreign federal, state or local
statute, law (including common law), ordinance, rule, administrative
interpretation, regulation, order, judgment, award, injunction, writ or decree
applicable to the parties or the provisions of this Agreement.



            Except as set forth in Section 2.9 of the Company Disclosure
Schedule, the Company and, to the knowledge of the Seller, each Person acting as
an agent of the Company has, since January 1, 2000, complied in all material
respects with Applicable Laws, having the purpose or effect of prohibiting
unlawful discrimination against customers or potential customers and, to the
knowledge of the Seller, the Company has not received any complaints from any
Person or Governmental Entity that the Company or any Person acting as an agent
of the Company has engaged in any unlawful discrimination.

            Section 2.10  Employee Benefit Plans.

(a) Section 2.10(a) of the Company Disclosure Schedule sets forth a correct and
complete list of all 401(k), equity compensation, incentive compensation, stock
incentive plans, vacation, bonus or other incentive plans, all other employee
programs, arrangements or agreements (including, without limitation, all
employment, termination or severance agreements), all medical, vision, dental or
other health plans, all life insurance plans, and all other employee benefit
plans or fringe benefit plans, including "employee benefit plans" as that term
is defined in Section 3(3) of the Employee Retirement Income Security Act
("ERISA"), in each case, that is maintained, sponsored or contributed to or
required to be contributed to by Seller or the Company or any trade or business,
whether or not incorporated (an "ERISA Affiliate"), that together with Seller or
the Company would be deemed a "single employer" within the meaning of Section
4001(b) of ERISA, or to which Seller or the Company or an ERISA Affiliate is a
party, whether written or oral, (collectively, the "Seller Benefit Plans").
Except as set forth in Section 2.10(a) of the Company Disclosure Schedule,
neither Seller nor the Company sponsors or contributes to any other employee
plans (including employee benefit plans) or programs
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including pension, retirement, profit sharing, deferred compensation, employee
stock ownership, or severance plans or programs, and neither the Seller nor the
Company has made any commitment to establish any new plan or program or modify
any existing plan or program. Seller has delivered to Buyer true and complete
copies of (i) the Seller Benefit Plans (including related trust agreements,
custodial agreements, insurance contracts, investment contracts and other
funding arrangements, if any, and adoption agreements, if any), (ii) all
amendments to the Seller Benefit Plans, (iii) written interpretations of the
Seller Benefit Plans, (iv) material employee communications by the plan
administrator of any Seller Benefit Plan (including summary plan descriptions
and summaries of material modifications, as defined under ERISA), (v) the three
(3) most recent annual reports (e.g., the complete Form 5500 series) prepared in
connection with each Seller Benefit Plan (if any such report was required),
including all attachments (including the audited financial statements, if any)
and (vi) the three (3) most recent actuarial valuation reports prepared in
connection with each Seller Benefit Plan (if any such report was required).

            There has been no amendment to, interpretation or announcement
(whether or not written) by Seller relating to, or change in employee
participation or coverage under, any Seller Benefit Plan that would increase the
expense of maintaining such plan above the level of expense incurred in respect
of such Seller Benefit Plan for the most recent plan year.

(b) Except as disclosed in Section 2.10(b) of the Company Disclosure Schedule,
all the Seller Benefit Plans and the related trusts comply with and have been
administered in all material respects in compliance with, their terms, ERISA,
the Code, and Applicable Laws. Seller has not received any written notice from
any Governmental Entity questioning or challenging such compliance or
administration.

(c) Except as disclosed in Section 2.10(c) of the Company Disclosure Schedule,
there are no pending, or to the knowledge of Seller, threatened claims or
disputes under the terms of, or in connection with, a Seller Benefit Plan other
than routine claims for benefits which are payable in the ordinary course, and
no material litigation or proceeding has been commenced or is expected to be
commenced with respect to any Seller Benefit Plan. There is no pending or, to
the knowledge of Seller, threatened proceeding by any governmental authority of
or against any Seller Benefit Plan, the assets held thereunder, the trustee of
any such assets, or Seller relating to any of the Seller Benefit Plans.

(d) No Seller Benefit Plan is subject to Title IV of ERISA. No material



liability under Title IV or Section 302 of ERISA has been incurred by the
Seller, the Company or any ERISA Affiliate that has not been satisfied in full,
and no condition exists that presents a risk to the Seller, the Company or any
ERISA Affiliate of incurring any such liability.

(e) Each Seller Benefit Plan intended to be "qualified" within the meaning of
Section 401(a) of the Code is so qualified and the trusts maintained thereunder
are exempt from taxation under Section 501(a) of the Code and, to the Seller's
knowledge, no condition exists that would reasonably be likely to adversely
affect such qualification. Seller has delivered to Buyer the
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latest determination letters of the Internal Revenue Service relating to each
Seller Benefit Plan intended to be qualified under Code Section 401(a). Such
determination letters have not been revoked. Furthermore, there are no pending
proceedings or, to the knowledge of Seller, threatened proceedings in which the
"qualified" status of any applicable Seller Benefit Plan is at issue and in
which revocation of the determination letter has been threatened. Each
applicable Seller Benefit Plan has not been amended or operated, since the
receipt of the most recent determination letter, in a manner that would
adversely affect the "qualified" status of the Plan. There has been no
termination or partial termination, as defined in Code Section 411(d) and the
regulations thereunder, of any Seller Benefit Plan.

(f) Except as disclosed in Section 2.10(f) of the Company Disclosure Schedule,
no Seller Benefit Plan provides benefits, including any severance or other
post-employment benefit, salary continuation, termination, death, disability,
health or medical benefits (whether or not insured), life insurance or similar
benefit with respect to current or former employees (or their spouses or
dependents) of Seller beyond their retirement or other termination of service
other than (i) coverage mandated by applicable law, (ii) death, disability or
retirement benefits under any pension plan, (iii) deferred compensation benefits
accrued as liabilities on Seller's financial statements or interim financial
statements or (iv) benefits, the full cost of which is borne by the current or
former employee (or his or her beneficiary).

(g) No Seller Benefit Plan provides medical, surgical, hospitalization, death or
similar benefits (whether or not insured) for Employees or former employees of
the Company for periods extending beyond their retirement or other termination
of service, other than coverage mandated by Applicable Law.

(h) Except as disclosed in Section 2.10(g) of the Company Disclosure Schedule,
the consummation of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement will not,
either alone or in combination with another event, (i) entitle any current or
former employee of the Company to severance pay, unemployment compensation or
any other payment, including without limitation any payment under any employment
contract between any Employee and Seller or the Company, except as expressly
provided in this Agreement, (ii) accelerate the time of payment or vesting, or
increase the amount of compensation or awards due any such Employee or former
employee or (iii) cause any compensation or payment to any Employee to not be
deductible for federal income tax purposes by virtue of Sections 280G or 4999 of
the Code.

(i) Seller has not engaged in any transaction or acted or failed to act in a
manner that violates the fiduciary requirements of ERISA Section 404, or in any
"prohibited transaction" within the meaning of ERISA Section 406(a) or 406(b),
or of Code Section 4975(c), with respect to any Seller Benefit Plans. To the
knowledge of Seller, no other "party in interest," as defined in ERISA Section
3(14), or "disqualified person," as defined in Code Section 4975(e)(2), has
engaged in any such "prohibited transaction".
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(j) No liability has been incurred by Seller or by an ERISA Affiliate for any
tax, penalty or other liability with respect to any Seller Benefit Plan and, to
the knowledge of Seller, such plans do not expect to incur any such liability
prior to the Closing Date.

(k) Seller has made all required contributions under each Seller Benefit Plan on
a timely basis or, if not yet due, adequate accruals therefore have been
provided for in Seller's financial statements and the interim financial
statements.



(l) Seller has complied with, and satisfied, the requirements of COBRA with
respect to each Seller benefit Plan that is subject to the requirements of
COBRA. Each Seller Benefit Plan which is a group health plan, within the meaning
of Code Section 9832(a) has complied with and satisfied the applicable
requirements of Code Sections 9801 and 9802.

(m) Neither Seller nor any ERISA Affiliate has contributed to or been obligated
to contribute to a "multi-employer plan" (within the meaning of Section 3(37) of
ERISA).

            Section 2.11 Labor and Employment Matters.

(a) Schedule 2.11(a) contains a correct and complete list of all employees of
the Company ("Company Employees") and, as separately designated on Schedule
2.11(a), employees of Seller, Seller's Affiliates, or independent contractors
who perform essential services for the Company ("Service Employees") as of the
date of this Agreement, specifying for each person his or her job title and rate
of annual base salary or other compensation and target annual bonus opportunity
(Company Employees and Service Employees collectively, "Employees"). Except as
disclosed in Section 2.11(a) of the Company Disclosure Schedule or otherwise
provided pursuant to this Agreement, the employment of all Company Employees is
terminable at will by the Company without any penalty or severance obligation of
the Company. Except as set forth in Section 2.11(a) of the Company Disclosure
Schedule, (i) neither the Company nor the Seller is a party to any union
agreement or collective bargaining agreement or work rules or practices agreed
to with any labor organization or employee association and, to the knowledge of
the Seller and the Company, no attempt to organize any of the Employees or any
employees of Seller has been made or is pending, (ii) since January 1, 1998, the
Company and the Seller have not had any Equal Employment Opportunity Commission
charges or other claims of employment discrimination made or threatened against
it, (iii) since January 1, 1998, no state wage and hour department
investigations have been made of the Company or the Seller, (iv) since January
1, 1998, there has been no labor strike, dispute, slowdown, stoppage or lockout
against or affecting the Company or the Seller, (v) no unfair labor practice
charge or complaint against the Company or the Seller has been threatened or is
pending before the National Labor Relations Board or any similar Governmental
Entity, and (vi) there are no written personnel policies, rules or procedures
applicable to any Employees of the Company, other than those set forth in
Section 2.11(a) of the Company Disclosure Schedule, true and correct copies of
which have heretofore been delivered to the Buyer. Except as set forth in
Section 2.11 (a) of the Company Disclosure Schedule, there are no employment
contracts or severance agreements with any Employees or independent contractors
of the Company.
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(b) Since the enactment of the Worker Adjustment and Retraining Notification
("WARN") Act, there has not been (i) a "plant closing" (as defined in the WARN
Act) affecting any site of employment or one or more facilities or operating
units within any site of employment or facility of the Company or the Seller; or
(ii) a "mass layoff" (as defined in the WARN Act) affecting any site of
employment or facility of the Company or the Seller; nor has the Company or the
Seller been affected by any transaction or engaged in layoffs or employment
terminations sufficient in number to trigger application of any similar state or
local law. Except as set forth in Section 2.11(b) of the Company Disclosure
Schedule, the Company or the Seller has not suffered an "employment loss" (as
defined in the WARN Act) since 3 months prior to the date of this Agreement.

            Section 2.12  Taxes.

(a)         Except as set forth in Section 2.12 of the Company Disclosure
            Schedule:

            (i) The Company (i) has timely filed (or caused to be filed when
            due) with the appropriate taxing authorities all material Tax
            Returns (as hereinafter defined) required to be filed by it and all
            such Tax Returns are true, correct and complete, (ii) has paid all
            Taxes (as hereinafter defined) due and payable by it, and (iii) is a
            "C" corporation for federal tax purposes, and (iv) established in
            the most recent Financial Statements reserves that are adequate for
            the payment of any Taxes not yet due and payable;



            (ii) The Seller has prior to the date hereof provided to the Buyer
            copies of all Tax Returns applicable to the Company;

            (iii) There are no outstanding agreements extending or waiving the
            statutory period of limitation applicable to any claim for, or the
            period for the collection or assessment of, Taxes due for any
            taxable period with respect to any Tax for which the Company may be
            subject or liable;

            (iv) There is not now pending, nor to the knowledge of each the
            Seller and the Company is there any threat of an audit, assessment,
            collection, suit, action, administrative proceeding, investigation
            or other proceeding by any Governmental Entity relating to (i) any
            Taxes due from or with respect to the Company, or (ii) any Tax
            Return of or with respect to the Company;

            (v) There are no Liens for Taxes upon the assets or properties of
            the Company, except for statutory Liens for current Taxes not yet
            due;

            (vi) The Company (i) is not a party to, bound by, or obligated under
            any agreement relating to the sharing or allocation of Taxes or
            indemnification agreement with respect to Taxes or any similar
            contract or arrangement and (ii) has no potential liability or
            obligation to any Person as a result of, or pursuant to, any such
            agreement, contract or arrangement;
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            (viii)The Company has not agreed, nor is it required to make, any
            adjustment under Sections 446(e) or 481(a) of the Code (or any
            similar provision of state, local or foreign law) by reason of a
            change in accounting method or otherwise for any Tax period for
            which the applicable federal statute of limitations has not expired;

            (ix)The Company has not received a ruling from any Tax authority,
            nor has it entered into any closing agreement pursuant to Section
            7121 of the Code (or any similar provision of state, local or
            foreign law) or any other agreement with similar Tax purposes;

            (x) The Company has complied with all applicable laws relating to
            the withholding of Taxes and has timely withheld and paid over to
            the relevant Tax authority all amounts required to be so withheld
            and paid over for all periods under all applicable laws, including
            withholding in connection with payments to employees, independent
            contractors, creditors, partners, stockholders or other third
            parties;

            (xi) The Company has not been a member of any federal, state, local
            or foreign consolidated, unitary, combined or similar group other
            than the group in which Seller (or its Affiliates) is the common
            parent;

            (xii) The Company has not filed a consent pursuant to Section 341(f)
            of the Code (or any predecessor provision) or agreed to have Section
            341(f)(2) of the Code apply to the disposition of a subsection (f)
            asset (as such term is defined in Section 341(f)(4) of the Code)
            owned by the Company;

            (xiii) No jurisdiction where the Company does not file a Tax Return
            has made a Claim that the Company is required to file a Tax Return
            for such jurisdiction;

            (xiv) and the deduction of any amount payable or benefit provided
            pursuant to the terms of any plan, agreement or arrangement, whether
            written or oral, of the Company will not be subject to disallowance
            under Section 162(a)(1), 162(m) or 280G of the Code;

            (xv) No person is entitled to receive any "gross-up" payment from
            the Company in the event that the excise tax of Section 4999(a) is
            imposed on such Person;

            (xvi) Since the date of the Financial Statements, the Company has



            not incurred any liability for Taxes other than in the ordinary
            course of business; and

            (xvii) No power of attorney is currently in force with respect to
            any matter relating to Taxes of the Company.

(b) For the purpose of this Agreement, (i) the term "Tax" or "Taxes" shall mean
(x) any taxes, customs, duties, levies, fees or other like assessment or charge
of any kind whatsoever imposed by any Governmental Entity (including, but not
limited to, any taxes on or with respect to net or gross income, gross receipts,
franchise, profits, capital, sales, use, ad valorem, value
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added, transfer, real property transfer, transfer gains, inventory, capital
stock, license, withholding, payroll, employment, social security, unemployment,
excise, severance, stamp, occupation, real or personal property, gains,
estimated taxes, rent, excise, occupancy, recordation, bulk transfer,
intangibles, alternative or added minimum, real property, doing business, or any
disability insurance contributions, unemployment insurance contributions or
workers' compensation contributions), together with any interest thereon,
penalties, fines, fees, additions to tax or additional amounts with respect
thereto, imposed by the United States (federal, state or local) or other
applicable jurisdiction; (y) any liability for the payment of any amounts
described in (x) as a result of being a member of an affiliated, consolidated,
combined, unitary or similar group or as a result of transferor or successor
liability and (z) any liability for the payments of any amounts as a result of
being a party to any tax sharing agreement or as a result of any express or
implied obligation to indemnify any other Person with respect to the payment of
any amounts of the type described in clause (x) or (y). (ii) "Tax Return" shall
mean all returns, reports, statements, declarations, estimates and forms or
other documents (including any related or supporting information) required to be
filed by, or on behalf of the Company with respect to Taxes; and (iii) the term
"Code" shall mean the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.

            Section 2.13 Contracts.

(a) Section 2.13(a) of the Company Disclosure Schedule contains a correct and
complete list of all Contracts pursuant to which the Company is a party to or
bound by; and

            (i) have a duration of three months or more and are not terminable
            without penalty upon 60 days or less prior written notice by any
            party;

            (ii) require or could reasonably be expected to require any party
            thereto to pay $15,000 or more in any twelve month period, or
            $50,000 or more in the aggregate;

            (iii) require or could require any severance or retention payments
            to Employees after the Closing Date;

            (iv) contain any restrictive covenant, confidentiality or
            non-competition agreement;

            (v) constitute a lease or license of any Intellectual Property from
            any third party;

            (vi) regard the employment, services, consulting, termination or
            severance from employment of any director, officer, Employee,
            Company Employee, or other Person;

            (vii) constitute a trust indenture, mortgage, promissory note, loan
            agreement or other Contract for the borrowing of money or a leasing
            transaction of the type required to be capitalized in accordance
            with GAAP;
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            (viii) constitute an agreement of guarantee, support,
            indemnification, assumption or endorsement of, or any other similar
            commitment with respect to, the obligations, liabilities (whether
            accrued, absolute, contingent or otherwise) or indebtedness of any



            other Person (except for checks endorsed for collection);

            (ix) any contract with non-standard payment terms, in each case;

            (x) limit the freedom of the Company to engage in any line of
            business or to compete with any other corporation, partnership,
            limited liability company, trust, individual or other entity, or any
            confidentiality, secrecy or non-disclosure Contract or any Contract
            that may be terminable as a result of the Buyer's status as a
            competitor of any party to such Contract;

            (xi) are with an Affiliate or are between the Company and an
            Affiliate(s) (including the Seller), on one hand, and a third party,
            on the other hand (the "Joint Contracts");

            (xii) provide for a joint venture or partnership with any other
            Person;

            (xiii) are not in writing, true and correct summaries of which have
            been provided to Buyer;

            (xiv) constitute a contract entered into by the Company other than
            in the ordinary course consistent with past practice; or

            (xv) has granted or been granted forgiveness or waived or been
            granted a waiver of any rights or obligations under such Contract.

(b) Except as set forth in Section 2.13(b) of the Company Disclosure Schedule:
(i) all of the Contracts are valid and binding and are in full force and effect,
the Company is not in default under, and no event has occurred which, with the
passage of time or giving of notice or both, would result in the Company being
in default under or result in the waiver or loss of any right or obligation in
favor of the Company under any of the terms of the Contracts, (ii) none of the
Contracts requires the consent of any other party thereto in connection with the
transactions contemplated by this Agreement, (iii) none of the Contracts
contains a change of control provision that would either prohibit the
transactions contemplated by this Agreement or require the consent of any third
party; (iv) the Company is a party to a written agreement with all suppliers of
goods and services to the Company and (v) there exists no default or event of
default or event, occurrence, condition or act, with respect to the other
contracting party, which, with the giving of notice, the lapse of the time or
the happening of any other event or conditions, would become a default or event
of default under any Contract or result in the waiver or loss of any right or
obligation in favor of the Company. True, correct and complete copies of all
Contracts have been delivered to the Buyer.

                                       18

(c) For the purpose of this Agreement the term "Contract" means any written or
oral agreement, arrangement, commitment, contract, indenture, instrument, lease
or obligation of any kind or character to which the Company is a party or that
is binding on the Company or its assets or business.

            Section 2.14 Real Property. Section 2.14 of the Company Disclosure
Schedule sets forth a list of all real property leased or subleased by or on
behalf of the Company along with all documentation and amendments related
thereto (the "Real Property Lease") and includes the expiration date of any Real
Property Lease. The Company does not own any real property. The Seller agrees to
permit Barry J. Spiegel to retain the use of his present office located at 12514
West Atlantic Blvd, Coral Springs, Florida 33071, secretarial support services
for himself, office space for and the use of all existing office equipment by
the Company's employees on the date hereof, for a period of twelve (12) months
from the Closing Date at a monthly fee of Five Hundred Dollars ($500.00) that
may be terminated by Mr. Spiegel or the Seller upon sixty (60) days advance
written notice. The Company shall be fully responsible for the cost of all
telephone and facsimile charges incurred by the Company following the Closing
Date.

            Section 2.15  Intellectual Property.

(a) As used herein, the term "Intellectual Property" means (i) all trade names,
trademarks, service marks, product designations, trade dress, logos, slogans,
and designs and general intangibles of a like nature together with goodwill, all



registrations and applications related to the foregoing (collectively,
"Trademarks") set forth in Section 2.15(a) of the Company Disclosure Schedule;
(ii) the Internet domain names set forth in Section 2.15(a) of the Company
Disclosure Schedule; (iii) the patents, patent applications, disclosures of
inventions and the patents issued upon patent applications or based upon such
invention disclosures (collectively, "Patents") set forth in Section 2.15(a) of
the Company Disclosure Schedule; (iv) the copyrights, copyright registrations
and copyright applications (collectively, "Copyrights") set forth in Section
2.15(a) of the Company Disclosure Schedule; (v) all copies of computer programs,
including any and all software implementations of algorithms, models and
methodologies whether in source code or object code form, databases and
compilations, including any and all data and collections of data, all
documentation, including user manuals and training materials, related to any of
the foregoing and the content and information contained on any Web site other
than mass market software licensed to the Company that is available in consumer
retail stores or otherwise commercially available and subject to "shrink-wrap",
"click-through" or other standard form license agreements (collectively,
"Software") and (vi) the confidential information, technology, know-how,
inventions, processes, formulae, algorithms, models and methodologies (such
confidential items collectively, "Trade Secrets"), in the case of each of (i)
through (vi) of this paragraph, held for use or used in or related to the
business of the Company as conducted as of the Closing Date (including all
documentation relating thereto) or as contemplated to be conducted and any
licenses to use any of the foregoing.
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(b) Section 2.15(b) of the Company Disclosure Schedule sets forth, for all
Intellectual Property owned directly or indirectly, or licensed, leased or
otherwise used, by the Company, a complete and accurate list, of all U.S. and
foreign: (i) patents and patent applications; (ii) trademark and service mark
registrations (including Internet domain name registrations owned directly or
indirectly by either the Company), trademark and service mark applications and
material unregistered trademarks and service marks; and (iii) copyright
registrations, copyright applications and material unregistered copyrights.

(c) Section 2.15(c) of the Company Disclosure Schedule lists all contracts for
material Software which is licensed, leased or otherwise used by the Company,
and all Software which is owned by the Company ("Proprietary Software"), and
identifies which Software is owned, licensed, leased, or otherwise used, as the
case may be.

(d) Section 2.15(d) of the Company Disclosure Schedule sets forth a complete and
accurate list of all material agreements granting or obtaining any right to use
or practice any rights under any Intellectual Property, to which the Company is
a party or otherwise bound, as licensee or licensor thereunder, including,
without limitation, license agreements, settlement agreements and covenants not
to sue (collectively, the "License Agreements").

(e) Except as set forth in Section 2.15(e) of the Company Disclosure Schedule:

            (i) The Company owns or has the right to use all Intellectual
            Property, free and clear of all Liens other than Permitted Liens;

            (ii) Any Intellectual Property owned by the Company, the Seller or
            any of their respective Affiliates and used by the Company, has been
            duly maintained, is valid and subsisting, in full force and effect
            and has not been cancelled, expired or abandoned;

            (iii) Any Intellectual Property used by the Company but not owned by
            the Company, the Seller or any of their respective Affiliates has
            been duly maintained, is valid and subsisting, in full force and
            effect and has not been cancelled, expired or abandoned;

            (iv) Neither the Seller nor the Company has received written notice
            from any third party regarding any actual or potential infringement
            by the Company of any intellectual property of such third party, and
            the Company has no knowledge of any basis for such a claim against
            the Company;

            (v) Neither the Seller nor the Company has received written notice
            from any third party regarding any assertion or claim challenging
            the validity of any Intellectual Property owned or used by the



            Company or any subsidiary of the Company and the Company has no
            knowledge of any basis for such a claim;
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            (vi) The Company has not licensed or sublicensed its rights in any
            Intellectual Property, or received or been granted any such rights,
            other than pursuant to the License Agreements;

            (vii) No third party is misappropriating, infringing, diluting or
            violating any Intellectual Property owned or used by the Company;

            (viii) The License Agreements are valid and binding obligations of
            the Company, enforceable in accordance with their terms, except that
            such enforcement may be subject to any bankruptcy, insolvency,
            reorganization, moratorium, fraudulent transfer or other laws, now
            or hereafter in effect, relating to or limiting creditors' rights
            generally;

            (ix) The Company takes reasonable measures to protect the
            confidentiality of Trade Secrets including requiring third parties
            having access thereto to execute written nondisclosure agreements.
            No Trade Secret of the Company has been disclosed or authorized to
            be disclosed to any third party other than pursuant to a written
            nondisclosure agreement that the Company and the Seller reasonably
            believe adequately protects the Company's proprietary interests in
            and to such Trade Secrets;

            (x) The consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby will
            not result in the loss or impairment of the Company's rights to own
            or use any of the Intellectual Property, nor will such consummation
            require the consent of any third party in respect of any
            Intellectual Property; and

            (xi) All Proprietary Software set forth in Section 2.15(c) of the
            Company Disclosure Schedule, was either developed (a) by employees
            of the Company within the scope of their employment; or (b) by
            independent contractors who have assigned all of their rights to the
            Company pursuant to written agreement.

(f)Except as set forth in Section 2.15(f) of the Company Disclosure Schedule,
neither the Seller nor the Company:

            (i) has granted to any third party any exclusive rights of any kind
            (including, without limitation, exclusivity with regard to
            categories of advertisers on any World Wide Web site, territorial
            exclusivity or exclusivity with respect to particular versions,
            implementations or translations of any of the Intellectual
            Property), nor has the Seller or the Company granted any third party
            any right to market any of the Intellectual Property under any
            private label or "OEM" arrangements;

            (ii) has any outstanding sales or advertising contract, commitment
            or proposal (including, without limitation, insertion orders,
            slotting agreements or other agreements under which the Seller or
            the Company has allowed third parties to advertise on or otherwise
            be included in a World Wide Web site) that the Company currently
            expects to result in any material loss to the Company upon
            completion or performance thereof;
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            (iii) has any oral contracts or arrangements for the sale of
            advertising or any other product or service; or

(iv) employs any employee, contractor or consultant who, to the Company's
knowledge, is in violation of any material term of any written employment
contract, patent disclosure agreement or any other written contract or agreement
relating to the relationship of any such employee, consultant or contractor with
the Company or, to the Seller's or the Company's knowledge, any other party
because of the nature of the Business.

            Section 2.16  [Intentionally omitted]



            Section 2.17 Environmental Compliance. Except as set forth in
Section 2.17 of the Disclosure Schedule: (a) the Company is in compliance with
all applicable Environmental Laws; (b) the Company has all material Permits
required under any applicable Environmental Laws and are in compliance with
their respective requirements; and (c) there are no pending or, to Seller's
knowledge, threatened claims under Environmental Laws against the Company. For
the purposes of this Agreement, the term "Environmental Laws" shall mean each
federal, state, local and foreign law and regulation relating to pollution,
protection or preservation of human health or the environment including ambient
air, surface water, ground water, land surface or subsurface strata, and natural
resources, and including each law and regulation relating to emissions,
discharges, releases or threatened releases of materials of environmental
concern, or otherwise relating to the manufacturing, processing, distribution,
use, treatment, generation, storage, containment (whether above ground or
underground), disposal, transport or handling of materials of environmental
concern, or the preservation of the environment or mitigation of adverse effects
thereon and each law and regulation with regard to record keeping, notification,
disclosure and reporting requirements respecting materials of environmental
concern.

            Section 2.18 Affiliate and Non-Arm's Length Transactions. Since
January 1, 2000, the Company has not made any payment or loan to, or borrowed
any moneys from or become otherwise indebted to, any officer, director,
Employee, Company Employee, shareholder, Affiliate of the Company or any other
Person not dealing at arm's length with the Company, except as disclosed in
Section 2.18 of the Company Disclosure Schedule and except for usual employee
reimbursements and compensation paid in the ordinary course. Except as described
in Section 2.18 of the Company Disclosure Schedule and except for Contracts of
employment, the Company is not a party to any Contract with any officer,
director, Employee, shareholder or Affiliate of the Company or any other Person
not dealing at arm's length with the Company. Except as described in Section
2.18 of the Company Disclosure Schedule, neither Seller nor any officer,
director or shareholder of the Company and no entity which is an Affiliate of
one or more of such individuals: (a) owns, directly or indirectly, any interest
in (except for shares representing less than 1% of the outstanding shares of any
class or series of any publicly traded company), or is an officer, director,
employee or consultant of, any Person which is, or is engaged in business as, a
competitor of the Company or a lessor, lessee, supplier, distributor, sales
agent or customer of the Company; (b) owns, directly or indirectly, in whole or
in part, any
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property used in the operation of the business of the Company; or
(c) has to the knowledge of the Seller or the Company any cause of action or
other claim whatsoever against, or owes any amount to, the Company, except for
any claims in the ordinary course such as for accrued vacation pay and accrued
benefits under any employee plans. Section 2.18 of the Company Disclosure
Schedule contains a complete and correct list as of the date hereof of all
Contracts, transfers of assets or liabilities or commitments or transactions,
whether or not entered into in the ordinary course, to or by which the Company,
on the one hand, and the Seller, an Affiliate of the Seller or any officer,
director, employee or shareholder of the Seller, an Affiliate of the Seller or
the Company, on the other hand, are a party or are otherwise bound or affected
that (i) are currently pending or in effect or (ii) involve continuing
liabilities and obligations. For the purposes of this Agreement, the term
"Affiliate" shall have the meaning set forth in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.

            Section 2.19 Guarantees. Except as set forth in Section 2.19 of the
Company Disclosure Schedule, neither the Seller nor any other third party
(including any Affiliate) has guaranteed the duties, performance, or obligations
(financial or otherwise) of the Company for the benefit of any Person. Except as
set forth in Section 2.19 of the Company Disclosure Schedule, the Company has
not guaranteed the duties, performance or obligations (financial or otherwise)
of any Person.

            Section 2.20 Customers. Section 2.20 of the Seller's Disclosure
Schedule sets forth the twenty (20) largest customers (each a "Material
Customer") of the Company as of the date hereof, based on gross revenues
received from each such customer during such period. Neither Seller nor the
Company has received written notice, or to Seller's knowledge any oral notice,
from any Material Customer that such Material Customer is canceling or otherwise



substantially reducing its usage or purchase of the products and services of the
Company. Except as set forth in Section 2.20 of the Company Disclosure Schedule,
the Company has a written agreement with each Material Customer.

            Section 2.21 Brokers; Finders and Fees. The Seller has not employed
any investment banker, broker or finder or incurred any liability for any
investment banking fees, brokerage fees, commissions or finders' fees in
connection with this Agreement or the transactions contemplated hereby.

            Section 2.22 Accounts Receivable. All information set forth in the
March 31, 2003 balance sheet with respect to accounts receivable of the Company
is true, accurate and complete as of March 31, 2003, and since that date up to
and including the Closing Date there has been no material adverse change with
respect to the amount, validity, or collectibility of accounts receivable of the
Company, except for increases or decreases in the amount of accounts receivable
due to the continued operation of the Company in its ordinary course of
business. Such accounts receivables are, and at the Closing Date, to the extent
not theretofore collected, will be, valid and existing evidence of monies due
for services performed or goods sold.
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            Section 2.23 Insurance. The Company is presently insured, and since
its inception has been insured, against such risks as companies engaged in a
similar business would, in accordance with good business practice, customarily
be insured. The policies of fire, theft, liability and other insurance
maintained with respect to the assets or businesses of the Company, in the
Company's reasonable estimation, provide adequate coverage against loss. The
Company has furnished to the Buyer a complete and correct list as of the date
hereof of all insurance policies maintained by the Company, and has made
available to the Buyer complete and correct copies of all such policies,
together with all riders and amendments thereto. All such policies are in full
force and effect and all premiums due thereon have been paid to the date hereof.
The Company has complied in all material respects with the terms of such
policies.

            Section 2.24 Properties/Assets/Liabilities. The Company has good and
marketable title, free and clear of all Liens to all of its properties and
assets, whether tangible or intangible, real, personal or mixed, reflected in
the Financial Statements as being owned by Company as of the date thereof, other
than (i) any properties or assets that have been sold or otherwise disposed of
in the ordinary course of business since the date of the Financial Statements,
(ii) Liens disclosed in the notes to the Financial Statements, and (iii) Liens
arising in the ordinary course of business after the date of the Financial
Statements. All buildings, and all fixtures, equipment and other property and
assets that are material to its business, held under leases or sub-leases by
Company are held under valid instruments enforceable in accordance with their
respective terms, subject to the Bankruptcy Exception. All of Company's
equipment in regular use which is needed for the operation of Company has been
reasonably maintained and is in serviceable condition, reasonable wear and tear
excepted. The Company has good and marketable title, free and clear of all Liens
to all assets necessary to conduct the Business as such is being conducted on
the date of this Agreement and proposed to be conducted, and such assets are not
owned or held by any other Person. A list of all such assets having a value in
excess of $1,000 is set forth on Section 2.24 of the Company Disclosure
Schedule. A list of all Assets and Liabilities of the Company that are to be
transferred from the Company to the Seller and/or a Seller's subsidiary is set
forth in Section 4.24 of the Company Disclosures Schedule and labeled
"Transferred Assets/Liabilities".

            Section 2.25 Certain Business Practices. None of the Company, the
Seller or any of their respective directors, officers, agents or employees (in
their capacities as such) has (i) used any funds for unlawful contributions,
gifts, entertainment or other unlawful expenses relating to political activity,
(ii) made any unlawful payment to foreign or domestic government officials or
employees or to foreign or domestic political parties or campaigns or violated
any provision of the Foreign Corrupt Practices Act of 1977, as amended, or (iii)
made any other unlawful payment.

            Section 2.26 New York Business Corporation Law. The board of
directors of the Seller has approved this Agreement. To the Knowledge of the
Seller and the Company, no other state takeover statute or similar statute or
regulation applies or purports to apply to this Agreement, or the transactions



contemplated by this Agreement. No other "control share
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acquisition," "fair price," "moratorium" or other antitakeover laws or
regulations enacted under U.S. state or federal laws apply to this Agreement.

            Section 2.27 Business Activity Restriction. There is no
non-competition or other similar agreement, commitment, order of any
Governmental Entity to which the Seller or the Company is a party or subject to
that has or could reasonably be expected to have the effect of prohibiting or
impairing the conduct of the Business by the Company before or after the
Closing. The Company has not entered into any agreement under which the Company
is restricted from selling, licensing or otherwise distributing any of its
technology or products to, or providing services to, customers or potential
customers or any class of customers, in any geographic area, during any period
of time or in any segment of the market or line of business.

            Section 2.28 Privacy. The Company is, and has always been, in
compliance with its then-current privacy policy, including those posted on the
Company's Web site(s). The Company has conducted its business and maintained its
data at all times in accordance with all applicable Federal, state and other
laws, including, but not limited to, those relating to the use of information
collected from or about consumers. The Company is, and has always been, in
compliance with its customers' privacy policies, when required to do so by
contract.

            Section 2.29 Bank Accounts. Section 2.29 of the Company Disclosure
Schedule sets forth a complete list of all bank accounts, savings deposits,
money-market accounts, certificates of deposit, safety deposit boxes, and
similar investment accounts with banks or other financial institutions
maintained by or on behalf of the Company showing the depository bank or
institution address, appropriate bank contact personnel, account number and
names of signatories.

            Section 2.30 Disclosure. No representation or warranty by the Seller
or the Company in this Agreement and no statement contained in any document or
other writing furnished or to be furnished to the Buyer or its representatives
pursuant to the provisions hereof contains or will contain any untrue statement
of material fact or omits or will omit to state any material fact necessary in
order to make the statements made herein or therein not misleading.

                                  ARTICLE III

                   REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF THE BUYER
                   -------------------------------------------

            The Buyer hereby represents and warrants to the Seller as follows:

            Section 3.1 Organization; Etc. The Buyer is a Florida Corporation.

            Section 3.2 Authority Relative to this Agreement. This Agreement and
the other Transaction Documents have been or will be duly executed and delivered
by the Buyer and, assuming the due authorization, execution and delivery by the
other parties hereto, each such agreement constitutes a legal, valid and binding
obligations of such party, enforceable against such party in accordance with its
terms, subject to the Bankruptcy Exception.

            Section 3.3 Consents and Approvals; No Violations. Neither the
execution and delivery of this Agreement by the Buyer nor the consummation by
the Buyer of the transactions contemplated hereby and thereby will (a) result in
a violation or breach of, or constitute (with or without due notice or lapse of
time or both) a default (or give rise to any right of termination, cancellation
or acceleration) under, or require any consent under, any indenture, license,
contract, agreement or other instrument or obligation to which the Buyer is a
party or by which it or any of its properties or assets may be bound, (b)
violate any order, writ, injunction, decree or award rendered by any
Governmental Entity or Laws applicable to the Buyer, any of their respective
subsidiaries or any of their respective properties or assets, or (c) require any
filing with, or the obtaining of any permit, authorization, consent or approval
of, any Governmental Entity.



            Section 3.4 Brokers; Finders and Fees. Neither the Buyer nor any of
its Affiliates has employed any investment banker, broker or finder or incurred
any liability for any investment banking, financial advisory or brokerage fees,
commissions or finders' fees in connection with this Agreement or the
transactions contemplated hereby.

            Section 3.5 Investment Representations. The Buyer understands that
as of the Closing Date, the Company Shares will not have been registered under
the Securities Act. The Buyer also understands that the Company Shares are being
offered and sold pursuant to an exemption from registration contained in the
Securities Act based in part upon the Buyer's representations contained in the
Agreement. The Buyer hereby represents and warrants that it is an "accredited
investor" within the meaning of the Securities Act of 1933 and the rules and
regulations promulgated thereunder (the "Securities Act").

                                   ARTICLE IV

                            COVENANTS OF THE PARTIES

            Section 4.1 Conduct of Business of the Seller. During the period
from the date of this Agreement to the Closing Date, except (x) as otherwise
contemplated by this Agreement or the transactions contemplated hereby, (y) for
those matters set forth in Section 4.1 of the Company Disclosure Schedule, or
(z) consented to by the Buyer in writing, the Company shall, and Seller shall
cause the Company to, conduct the business of the Company as follows:

(a) The business of the Company shall be conducted in the same manner as
heretofore conducted and only in the ordinary course, and Seller shall cause the
Company to use its commercially reasonable best efforts to preserve the business
organization of the Company intact, keep available the services of the current
officers and employees of the Company and maintain the existing relations with
customers, suppliers, creditors, business partners, landlords, employees and
others having business dealings with the Company. The Company shall not
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institute any new methods of purchase, sale, lease, management, accounting or
operation or engage in any transaction or activity other than minor changes in
the ordinary course of business and consistent with past practice;

(b) The Company shall not: (i) amend its articles of incorporation or by-laws or
similar organizational documents, (ii) issue, sell, transfer, pledge, dispose of
or encumber any shares of any class or series of its capital stock, or
securities convertible into or exchangeable for, or options, warrants, calls,
commitments or rights of any kind to acquire, any shares of any class or series
of its capital stock, (iii) declare, set aside or pay any dividend or other
distribution payable in cash, stock or property with respect to any shares of
any class or series of its capital stock; (iv) split, combine or reclassify any
shares of any class or series of its stock; or (v) redeem, purchase or otherwise
acquire directly or indirectly any shares of any class or series of its capital
stock, or any instrument or security which consists of or includes a right to
acquire such shares;

(c) The Company shall not organize any new subsidiary or acquire any capital
stock or other equity securities, or equity or ownership interest in the
business, of any other Person;

(d) The Company shall not modify, amend or terminate any of the Contracts or
waive, release or assign any material rights or claims, except in the ordinary
course of business and consistent with past practice;

(e) The Company shall not: incur or assume any long-term debt, or except in the
ordinary course of business, incur or assume short-term indebtedness from the
date hereof until the Closing; pay, repay, discharge, purchase, repurchase or
satisfy any indebtedness issued or guaranteed by the Company, except as required
by the terms thereof; modify the terms of any indebtedness or other liability;
assume, guarantee, endorse or otherwise become liable or responsible (whether
directly, contingently or otherwise) for the obligations of any other Person;
make any loans, advances or capital contributions to, or investments in, any
other Person; enter into any material commitment or transaction (including any
capital expenditure or purchase, sale or lease of assets or real estate); write
down the value of any inventory or write off as uncollectible any notes or



accounts receivable except in the ordinary course of business consistent with
past practice, dispose of or permit to lapse any rights to any Intellectual
Property or change any of the banking or safe deposit arrangements described or
referred to in the Company Disclosure Schedules;

(f) The Company shall not lease, license, mortgage, pledge or encumber any
assets other than in the ordinary course of business and consistent with the
past practice or transfer, sell or dispose of any assets other than in the
ordinary course of business and consistent with past practice or dispose of or
permit to lapse any rights to any Intellectual Property;

(g) The Company shall not make any change in the compensation payable or to
become payable to any of its officers, directors, employees, agents or
consultants (other than normal recurring increases in the ordinary course of
business of wages payable to employees who are not officers or directors or
Affiliates of the Company) or to Persons providing management
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services, or enter into or amend any employment, severance, consulting,
termination or other agreement with, or employee benefit plan for, or make any
loan or advance to, any of its officers, directors, employees, Affiliates,
agents or consultants or make any change in its existing borrowing or lending
arrangements for or on behalf of any of such Persons pursuant to an employee
benefit plan or otherwise;

(h) The Company shall not (i) pay or make any accrual or arrangement for payment
of any pension, retirement allowance or other employee benefit pursuant to any
existing plan, agreement or arrangement to any officer, director, employee or
Affiliate or pay or agree to pay or make any accrual or arrangement for payment
to any officer, director, employee or Affiliate of any amount relating to unused
vacation days, except to the extent the Company is unconditionally obligated to
do so on the date hereof, (ii) adopt or pay, grant, issue, accelerate or accrue
salary or other payments or benefits pursuant to any pension, profit-sharing,
bonus, extra compensation, incentive, deferred compensation, stock purchase,
stock option, stock appreciation right, group insurance, severance pay,
retirement or other employee benefit plan, agreement or arrangement, or any
employment or consulting agreement with or for the benefit of any director,
officer, employee, agent or consultant, whether past or present, except to the
extent the Company is unconditionally obligated to do so on the date hereof, or
(iii) amend in any material respect any such existing plan, agreement or
arrangement or any Seller Benefit Plan in a manner inconsistent with the
foregoing;

(i) The Company shall not permit any insurance policy naming it as a beneficiary
or a loss payable payee to be cancelled or terminated without notice and consent
of Buyer;

(j) The Company shall not enter into any contract or transaction relating to the
purchase of assets other than in the ordinary course of business consistent with
past practices;

(k) The Company shall not pay, repurchase, discharge or satisfy any of its
claims, liabilities or obligations (absolute, accrued, asserted or unasserted,
contingent or otherwise), other than the payment, discharge or satisfaction in
the ordinary course of business and consistent with past practice, of claims,
liabilities or obligations reflected or reserved against in, or contemplated by,
the Financial Statements or incurred since the Balance Sheet date in the
ordinary course of business;

(l) The Company shall not adopt a plan of complete or partial liquidation,
dissolution, merger, consolidation, restructuring, recapitalization or other
reorganization of the Company;

(m) The Company shall not (i) change any of the accounting methods used by it
unless required by GAAP or (ii) make any election relating to Taxes, change any
election relating to Taxes already made, adopt any accounting method relating to
Taxes, change any accounting method relating to Taxes unless required by GAAP,
enter into any closing agreement relating to Taxes, settle, compromise or agree
to any adjustment of any Tax attribute or any claim or assessment relating to
any Taxes, Tax Return or Tax Claim, surrender any right to claim a refund
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of Taxes, file any amended Tax Return, or consent to any waiver of the statute
of limitations for any such claim or assessment;

(n) The Company shall not take, or agree to or commit to take, any action that
would or is reasonably likely to result in any of the conditions to the Closing
set forth in Article V not being satisfied, or would make any representation or
warranty of the Seller contained herein inaccurate in any respect at, or as of
any time prior to, the Closing Date, or that would materially impair the ability
of the Company, the Buyer, or the Seller to consummate the Closing in accordance
with the terms hereof or materially delay such consummation;

(o) The Company shall not enter into any agreement, contract, commitment or
arrangement to do any of the foregoing, or authorize, recommend, propose or
announce an intention to do, any of the foregoing; and

(p) The Company shall provide such standard periodic reports (produced by Seller
or the Company in the ordinary course of their business) to Buyer as reasonably
requested by Buyer and permit site visits by Buyer's representatives for
purposes of ongoing due diligence and for verifying compliance with the
provisions of this Section 4.1.

            Section 4.2 Access to Information for the Buyer. From the date of
this Agreement to the Closing, the Seller shall (i) give the Buyer and its
authorized representatives reasonable access to all books, records, documents,
personnel, offices and other facilities and properties of the Company, its
attorneys, and its accountants, (ii) permit the Buyer to make such copies and
inspections thereof as the Buyer may reasonably request and (iii) cause the
officers of the Company to furnish the Buyer with such financial and operating
data and other information with respect to the business and properties of the
Company as the Buyer may from time to time reasonably request; provided,
however, that any such access shall be conducted at the Buyer's expense, during
normal business hours, under the supervision of the personnel of the Company and
in such a manner as to maintain the confidentiality of this Agreement and the
transactions contemplated hereby and not to interfere unreasonably with the
normal operation of the business of the Company.

            Section 4.3 Consents; Cooperation. Each of the parties shall
cooperate and use its commercially reasonable efforts to make all filings and
obtain all licenses, permits, consents, approvals, authorizations,
qualifications and orders of Governmental Entities and other third parties
necessary to consummate the transactions contemplated by this Agreement. Section
4.4 Commercially Reasonable Efforts. Each of the parties shall cooperate and use
its commercially reasonable efforts to take, or cause to be taken, all actions,
and to do, or cause to be done, all things necessary, proper or advisable under
Applicable Laws and regulations to consummate and make effective the
transactions contemplated by this Agreement.

            Section 4.5 Public Announcements. Prior to the Closing, except as
otherwise agreed to by the parties, the parties shall not issue any report,
statement or press release or otherwise make
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any public statements with respect to this Agreement and the transactions
contemplated thereby, except as in the reasonable judgment of a party may be
required by law or in connection with its obligations as a publicly-held,
exchange-listed company, in which case the parties will use their best efforts
to reach mutual agreement as to the language of any such report, statement or
press release. Upon the Closing, the parties will consult with each other with
respect to the issuance of a joint report, statement or press release with
respect to this Agreement and the transactions contemplated hereby.

            Section 4.6 Tax Matters.

(a)         Tax Returns

            (i) The Seller shall prepare and timely file (or cause to be filed
            when due) all Tax Returns that are required to be filed by or with
            respect to the Company for taxable years or periods ending on or
            before the Closing Date and the Seller shall pay (or cause to be
            paid) any and all Taxes due and payable in respect to such Tax
            Returns. All Tax Returns shall be prepared and filed in a manner



            that is consistent with the prior practice of the Company, except as
            required by applicable law.

            (ii) During the period from the date hereof to the Closing Date, the
            Seller shall cause the Company to: (i) timely file all Tax Returns
            required to be filed by it ("Post-Signing Tax Returns") and such
            Post-Signing Tax Returns shall be prepared in a manner consistent
            with past practice, (ii) timely pay all Taxes due and payable and
            (iii) promptly notify the Buyer of any federal or state income or
            franchise (or other material) Tax Claim, investigation or audit
            pending against or with respect to the Company in respect of any Tax
            matters (or any significant developments with respect to any ongoing
            Tax matters), including material Tax liabilities and material Tax
            refund claims. The Buyer shall file or cause to be filed when due
            all Tax Returns that are required to be filed by or with respect to
            the Company for taxable periods ending after the Closing Date and,
            subject to Sections 4.6(b)(iii) and 4.6(c), the Buyer shall pay (or
            cause to be paid) any Taxes due in respect of such Tax Returns.

            (iii) With respect to any Tax Return required to be filed by the
            Buyer for or on behalf of Company for or relating to any taxable
            year or period beginning on or before and ending after the Closing
            Date (a "Straddle Period"), the Buyer shall provide the Seller with
            a copy of such Tax Return and a statement specifying the amount of
            Tax shown on such Tax Return that is allocable to the Seller
            pursuant to Section 4.6(c) and (d) (the "Straddle Period
            Statement"), together with appropriate supporting information, at
            least forty-five (45) days prior to the due date (including any
            extension thereof) for the filing of such Tax Return. Such Tax
            Return shall be prepared in accordance with the past practice of the
            Company, if any, to the extent permissible under Applicable Law. The
            Seller shall pay the Buyer, in immediately available funds, the
            amount of Tax set forth on the Straddle Period Statement for which
            Seller is liable pursuant to Section 4.6(c) and (d) no later than 3
            days prior to the due date of any such Tax Return.
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            (iv) Seller shall not amend any Tax Return of or relating to the
            Company for any taxable year ending on or before the Closing Date or
            with respect to any Straddle Period without the consent of the
            Buyer, which consent shall not be unreasonably delayed or withheld.

(b)         Indemnification

            (i) From and after the Closing Date, the Seller shall indemnify,
            defend and hold the Buyer, Buyer Indemnitees (as defined herein) and
            the Company harmless from and against all Buyer Damages (as defined
            herein) asserted against and will reimburse the Buyer, Buyer
            Indemnitees and the Company for any and all Buyer Damages incurred
            or suffered to the extent such Buyer Damages arise out of or are
            attributable or related to (without duplication):

                  (1) all Taxes imposed on the Company relating or attributable
                  to taxable periods ending on or prior to the Closing Date
                  ("Pre-Closing Period") and, with respect to any period that
                  begins on or before and that ends after the Closing Date (in
                  each case, a "Straddle Period"), the portion of such Straddle
                  Period deemed to end on and include the Closing Date (in the
                  manner determined pursuant to Section 4.6(d));

                  (2) all Taxes imposed on the Company under Section 1.1502-6 of
                  the Treasury Regulations (and corresponding provisions of
                  state, local or foreign law) as a result of being a member of
                  any federal, state, local or foreign consolidated, unitary,
                  combined or similar group for any tax period ending on or
                  before, or that includes, the Closing Date;

                  (3) [Intentionally omitted]

                  (4) all Transfer Taxes for which Seller is liable pursuant to
                  Section 4.6(f) of this Agreement;



                  (5) the inaccuracy of any representation or warranty of the
                  Seller contained in Section 2.12 of this Agreement;

                  (6) the breach of any representation or warranty contained in
                  Section 2.12 of this Agreement; and

                  (7) the breach by Seller or failure of Seller to perform (or
                  cause to have performed) any of the covenants made by it
                  contained in Section 4.1(m) and this Section 4.6.

(ii)        From and after the Closing date, the Buyer shall indemnify, defend
            and hold the Seller and Seller Indemnitees (as defined herein)
            harmless from and against all Seller
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            Damages (as defined herein) asserted against and will reimburse the
            Seller and Seller Indemnitees for any and all Seller Damages
            incurred or suffered to the extent such Buyer Damages arise out of
            or are attributable or related to Taxes imposed on the Company with
            respect to taxable periods beginning after the Closing Date and,
            with respect to any Straddle Period, the portion of such Straddle
            Period beginning after the Closing Date (as determined pursuant to
            Section 4.6(d));

(c) Computation of Tax Liabilities. For purposes of Section 4.6(c), in order to
apportion appropriately any Taxes relating to a Straddle Period, the parties
hereto shall, to the extent permitted under applicable law, elect with the
relevant Tax authority to treat for all Tax purposes the Closing Date as the
last day of the taxable year or period of the Company. In any case where
applicable law does not permit the Company to treat the Closing Date as the last
day of the taxable year or period, the portion of any Taxes that are allocable
to the portion of the Straddle Period ending on the Closing Date shall be:

            (i) in the case of Taxes that are either (A) based upon or related
            to income or receipts, or (B) imposed in connection with any sale or
            other transfer or assignment of property (real or personal, tangible
            or intangible), deemed equal to the amount that would be payable if
            the taxable year or period ended on the Closing Date; and

            (ii) in the case of Taxes not described in Section 4.6(d)(i) that
            are imposed on a periodic basis and measured by the amount, value or
            level of any item (such as personal property taxes and real estate
            taxes), such Taxes shall be deemed to be the amount of such Taxes
            for the entire period (or, in the case of such Taxes determined on
            an arrears basis, the amount of such Taxes for the immediately
            preceding period) multiplied by a fraction, the numerator of which
            is the number of calendar days in the Straddle Period ending on (and
            including) the Closing Date and the denominator of which is the
            number of calendar days in the entire relevant Straddle Period.

(d)         Contest Provisions

            (i) After the Closing, each of the Buyer and the Company, on the one
            hand, and the Seller, on the other hand, (the "Recipient") shall
            promptly notify the chief tax officer (or other officer if no such
            position exists) of the other party in writing (including by
            facsimile) of the receipt by the Recipient of any written notice of
            any pending or threatened audits, notice of deficiency, proposed
            adjustment, assessment, examination or other administrative or court
            proceeding, suit, dispute or other similar claim (a "Tax Claim")
            received by Recipient from any Tax authority or any other party with
            respect to Taxes which, if determined adversely, could be grounds
            for indemnification under this Section 4.6; provided however, that a
            failure by the Buyer to give such notice shall not affect the
            Buyer's or Company's rights to indemnification under Section 4.6
            unless and to the extent the Seller is materially and adversely
            prejudiced as a consequence of such failure.

                                       32

            (ii) The Seller may elect to control the conduct, through counsel of
            the Seller's own choosing and at the Seller's own expense and with



            the participation of the Buyer, or any Tax Claim involving any
            asserted liability with respect to or relating to any Pre-Closing
            Period. If the Seller desires to elect to control any such Tax
            Claim, the Seller shall within 10 calendar days of receipt of the
            notice of asserted Tax liability notify Buyer in writing of its
            intent to do so. If the Seller properly elects to control such Tax
            Claim, then the Seller shall have all rights to settle, compromise
            and/or concede such asserted liability and the Buyer shall
            reasonably cooperate and shall cause the Company to reasonably
            cooperate at the expense of the Seller, in each phase of such Tax
            Claim; provided however, that the Seller shall not settle,
            compromise and/or concede such asserted liability if such
            settlement, compromise or concession could increase the Tax
            liability of any of the Buyer (or any of its Affiliates) or the
            Company for any other taxable period without the consent of the
            Buyer. If the Seller does not elect to control a Tax Claim for a
            Pre-Closing Period pursuant to this Section 4.6(e) (or, after
            assuming control, the Seller fails to reasonably defend against such
            Tax Claim), the Buyer or the Company may without affecting its or
            any other indemnified party's rights to indemnification under this
            Section 4.6, assume and control the defense of such Tax Claim with
            participation by the Seller (at Seller's expense); provided,
            however, that the Buyer may not settle or compromise such Tax Claim
            without the consent of the Seller, which consent shall not be
            unreasonably withheld.

(e) Transfer Taxes. The Seller will pay or cause to be paid any sales, use, real
property transfer, real property gains, transfer, stamp, registration,
documentary, recording or similar Taxes together with any interest thereon,
penalties, fines, fees, additions to tax or additional amounts with respect
thereto (collectively, "Transfer Taxes") incurred in connection with the
transactions contemplated by this Agreement. The Seller will be responsible for
preparing and timely filing (and the Buyer will cooperate with the Seller at the
Seller's expense in preparing and filing) any Tax Returns required with respect
to any such Transfer Taxes. The Seller will provide to the Buyer a true copy of
each such Tax Return as filed and evidence of timely filing thereof.

(f) Termination of Tax Sharing Agreements. As of the Closing, all Tax sharing
agreements or similar agreements, written or unwritten, with respect to or
involving the Company shall be terminated and, after the Closing Date, the
Company shall not have any further rights or obligations under any such
agreement.

(h) Accounting and Tax Records. The Buyer acknowledges that the Seller, from
time to time after the Closing Date, require access to certain accounting and
Tax records and information held by the Company to the extent such records and
information pertain to events occurring on or prior to the Closing Date;
therefore, from and after the Closing Date, the Buyer and the Company shall (I)
use its reasonable best efforts to properly retain and maintain such records for
seven (7) years after the Closing Date and subject to sub-Sections (2) and (3)
of 4.6(h) may thereafter destroy, abandon or dispose of all or a portion of such
records in its sole discretion, (ii) upon
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written notice by the Seller to the Buyer (within 90 days prior to the end of
the 7 year period following the Closing Date) that Seller requests all or a
portion of such records, Buyer shall transfer such records (or copies of such
records) to the Seller at Seller's expense and (iii) allow the Seller and their
respective agents and representatives, at times and dates reasonably and
mutually acceptable to the parties, from time to time, to inspect, review and
make copies of such records as the Seller may deem necessary or appropriate;
provided, however, that in all cases, such activities are to be conducted by the
Seller during normal business hours and at the Seller's expense. The Seller
shall reimburse the Buyer for its reasonable out-of-pocket costs and expenses
incurred in conjunction with such efforts. The Buyer shall not be required by
this Section 4.6(h) to take any action that would unreasonably interfere with
the conduct of its business or unreasonably disrupt its normal operations.

(i)         Tax Assistance and Cooperation.

            (i) The Seller and Buyer agree to furnish or cause to be furnished
            to each other, upon request, as promptly as practicable, such



            information (including access to books and records) and assistance
            relating to the Company as reasonably requested for the filing of
            any Tax Returns, for the preparation of any audit and for the
            prosecution or defense of any Tax Claim, suit or proceeding related
            to any proposed adjustment. Any information obtained under this
            Section 4.6(i) shall be kept confidential except (1) as may be
            otherwise necessary in connection with the filing of Tax Returns or
            Tax Claims for refund or in conducting an audit or other proceeding
            or (2) with the consent of the Seller or the Buyer, as the case may
            be.

            (ii) Subject to 4.6(e), the Buyer shall not permit the Company (1)
            to take any action (other than actions in the ordinary course of
            business or with respect to any election) on the Closing Date that
            will increase the Seller's liability for Taxes, without consent of
            the Seller or (2) make or change any Tax election or amend any Tax
            Return (other than with respect to the carryback of the Tax
            attribute form a period ending after the Closing Date), with respect
            to or relating to Pre-Closing Periods of the Company, as the case
            may be without the consent of the Seller or (3) waive or extend any
            statute of limitations with respect or relating to Pre-Closing
            Periods of the Company without the consent of the Seller, not to be
            unreasonably withheld.

            (iii) Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this
            Agreement, the Seller shall not, and the Buyer shall not be required
            by the Seller to, amend any Tax Return of or relating to the
            Company.

(j)         Tax Audits

            (i) After the Closing, each of the Buyer, on the one hand, and the
            Seller, on the other hand ("Recipient"), will promptly notify the
            other party in writing upon receipt by the Recipient or any of its
            Affiliates (including in the case of the Buyer, the Company) of any
            written notice of any pending or threatened audit or assessment,
            suit, proposed
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            adjustment, deficiency, dispute, administrative or judicial
            proceeding or other similar claim ("Tax Claim") received by the
            Recipient form any Tax authority or any other party with respect to
            Taxes for which the Seller is liable pursuant to Section 4.6(c),
            provided, however, that a failure by the Buyer to give such notice
            will not affect the Buyer's or the Company's rights to
            indemnification under Section 4.6(c) unless and to the extent such
            failure materially and adversely affects the Seller's rights to
            participate in and defend such Tax Claim. Such notice shall contain
            factual information (to the extent known) describing the asserted
            Tax liability in reasonable detail and shall include copies of any
            notice or other document received from any Tax authority in respect
            of any such asserted Tax liability.

            (ii) The Seller may elect to control the conduct, through counsel of
            the Seller's own choosing and at the Seller's own expense and with
            the participation of the Buyer, of any Tax claim involving any
            asserted liability with respect to or relating to any Pre-Closing
            Period only. If the Seller elects to control any such Tax Claim, the
            Seller shall within 30 calendar days of receipt of the notice of
            asserted Tax liability notify the Buyer in writing of its intent to
            do so. If the Seller properly elects to control such a Tax Claim,
            then the Seller shall have all rights to settle, compromise and/or
            concede such asserted liability and the Buyer shall cooperate and
            shall cause the Company or any of their successors to reasonably
            cooperate, at the expense of the Seller, in each phase of such Tax
            Claim; provided, however, that the Seller shall not settle,
            compromise and/or concede such asserted liability if such
            settlement, compromise or concession could increase the Tax
            liability of the Company for any other taxable period without the
            consent of the Buyer. If the Seller does not elect to control a Tax
            Claim for a Pre-Closing Period, the Buyer or the Company may,
            without affecting its or any other indemnified party's rights to



            indemnification under Section 4.6, assume and control the defense of
            such Tax Claim with participation by the Seller (at its own
            expense); provided, however, that the Buyer may not settle or
            compromise such Tax Claim without the consent of the Seller, which
            consent shall not be unreasonably withheld.

            (iii) With respect to any Tax Claim that involves any Straddle
            Period, the Buyer shall control the conduct of any such Tax Claim,
            through counsel of the Buyer's own choosing.

(k) FIRPTA Certificate. The Seller shall furnish to the Buyer on or before the
Closing Date a duly executed certificate of the Seller's non-foreign status in
the form and manner that complies with Section 1445 of the Code and the Treasury
Regulations thereunder (the "FIRPTA Certificate"). Notwithstanding anything to
the contrary contained herein, if the Seller fails to deliver the FIRPTA
Certificate and the Buyer elects to proceed with the Closing, the Buyer shall be
entitled to withhold the amount required to be withheld pursuant to Section 1445
of the Code from the Purchase Price payable to the Seller.
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(l) Payments. Except as otherwise provided in this Section 4.6, any amounts owed
by any party to any other party under this Section 4.6 shall be paid within ten
days of notice from such other party. Any amounts that are not paid within such
ten-day period (or as otherwise set forth herein) shall accrue interest at the
rate of eight percent per year, compounded daily.

(m) Tax Refunds. The Buyer shall pay to the Seller all refunds or credits of
Taxes received by the Buyer or the Company after the Closing Date and
attributable to Taxes paid by the Company (or any predecessor of the Company)
with respect to a Pre-Closing Period, net of any Taxes imposed on such refund
amount, provided, however, that the Buyer shall not be entitled to any refund or
credit of the Company relating to a carryback of a Tax attribute relating to any
period ending after the Closing Date.

(n) Conflicts; Survival. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement
to the contrary: the obligations of the parties hereto set forth in this Section
4.6 shall: (i) be unconditional and absolute, and (ii) remain in full force and
effect indefinitely, provided, however, that the representations and warranties
contained in Section 2.12 shall survive the Closing until 180 days following the
expiration of the applicable statute of limitations (taking into account all
extensions); provided; further; in the event notice for indemnification shall
have been given within the applicable survival period, the representation or
warranty that is the subject of such indemnification claim shall survive until
such time as such claim is finally resolved. In the event of a conflict between
Section 4.6 and any other provision of this Agreement, this Section 4.6 shall
govern and control.

(o) Tax Treatment of Indemnification Payment. The parties hereto agree to treat
any Indemnity Payment made pursuant to this Section 4.6 as an adjustment to the
Purchase Price for all Tax purposes.

            Section 4.7  Employees; Employee Benefits; Stock Options.

(a) [Intentionally omitted]

(b) Commencing at the time of the Closing, each Company Employee shall be
eligible to participate in the employee benefit plans, programs, policies and
arrangements of the Buyer (or Buyer's parent as the case may be) generally
provided to similarly situated employees of the Buyer (such plans, "Buyer
Benefit Plans") in accordance with the terms governing such plans. For purposes
of the Buyer Benefit Plans, the Buyer shall treat the prior service of such
employees with the Company as service rendered to the Buyer for purposes of all
eligibility periods and vesting.

(c) On the Closing Date, the Buyer and the Seller shall jointly give notice to
the Company Employees that the active participation of employees in the Seller
Benefit Plans shall terminate as of such date and that such employees shall be
immediately eligible to participate in the Buyer Benefit Plans in accordance
with the terms thereof. Except as otherwise stated in this Agreement, in no
event shall any Company Employee be entitled to accrue any benefits under, or
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continue participation in, the Seller Benefit Plans after the Closing Date, and
the Company shall terminate its participation in all Seller Benefit Plans as of
that date. However, notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, Seller will continue to provide health insurance benefits for all
Company employees for a period of sixty (60) days after the Closing Date, or
until such time as Buyer obtains health insurance benefits for the Company's
employees, whichever occurs first, at the sole cost of the Company. Seller shall
invoice the Company for the actual cost of the health insurance benefits and the
Company shall pay such invoice within ten (10) days of receipt of each invoice.
The Company shall assume all risk of any claim asserted by the insurer or any
employee of the Company regarding non-insurability of the Company's employees
subsequent to the Closing Date.

(d) [Intentionally omitted]

(e) The Seller shall retain responsibility for all life insurance and long term
disability expenses and benefits in respect of claims covered by the applicable
Seller Benefit Plan that are incurred in respect of an Employee prior to the
Closing Date.

(f) It is expressly agreed that the provisions of this Section 4.7 are not
intended to be for the benefit of or otherwise be enforceable by any third
party, including, without limitation, any Employee, Company Employee or employee
organization.

(g) [Intentionally omitted]

(g) From and after the Closing Date, the Seller shall indemnify and hold
harmless the Buyer Indemnitees (as defined in Section 7.2(a)) from and against
all Buyer Damages (as defined in Section 7.2(a)) resulting from any claim
asserted against or incurred by any Buyer Indemnitee arising out of any Seller
Benefit Plan.

            Section 4.8 Maintenance of Books and Records. Each of the parties
hereto shall preserve, until at least the fifth anniversary of the Closing Date,
all pre-Closing Date records possessed or to be possessed by such party relating
to the Company except to the extent with respect to Tax records of or relating
to the Company (which shall be governed by Section 4.6(h) of this Agreement.
After the Closing Date and up until at least the third anniversary of the
Closing Date, upon any reasonable request from a party hereto or its
representatives, the party holding such records shall, subject to the
confidentiality provisions of Section 4.11, (x) provide to the requesting party
or its representatives reasonable access to such records during normal business
hours and (y) permit the requesting party or its representatives to make copies
of such records, in each case at no cost to the requesting party or its
representatives (other than for reasonable out-of-pocket expenses). Such records
may be sought under this Section 4.8 for any reasonable purpose, including,
without limitation, to the extent reasonably required in connection with the
audit, accounting, tax, litigation, federal securities disclosure or other
similar needs of the party seeking such records. Notwithstanding anything to the
contrary contained herein, the
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maintenance of all books and records with respect to Tax matters pertinent to
the Company relating to any taxable period beginning on or before, or including,
the Closing Date, shall be governed by Section 4.6(h).

            Section 4.9 Covenants of the Buyer and the Company. The Buyer and
the Company agree to honor and enforce all of the terms of any and all
agreements that are assigned to the Buyer and/or the Company pursuant to the
terms of this Agreement.

            Section 4.10 Non-Competition; Non-Solicitation.

(a) None of the Seller, its Affiliates (including without limitation
driversshield.com CRM Corp. ("CRM") and Sentaur Corp.), shall, at any time
following the Closing Date, directly or indirectly, own, operate or become an
Affiliate of any Person engaged in the Business of the Company ; provided that
the foregoing shall not prohibit the Seller or its Affiliates from owning, in
the aggregate, as a passive investment less than 5% of the equity of any
publicly-traded entity.



(b) The Seller, for itself and its Affiliates, agree that neither will directly
or indirectly, for a period of three years after the Closing Date, (i) seek to
employ, or solicit for employment, any Employee or employee of Buyer (a "Buyer
Employee") or (ii) employ any Buyer Employee or Company Employee whose name is
set forth in Section 5.3(d) of the Company Disclosure Schedule unless such
Company Employee or Buyer Employee has been separated from employment by the
Company or Buyer as the case may be for a period of not less than six (6) months
immediately prior to the date of such solicitation (in the case of paragraph
(b)(i)) or employment in the case of paragraph (b)(ii).

            Section 4.11 Post-Closing Confidentiality. For a period of five
years after the Closing, the Seller agrees to, and to cause each of their
Affiliates to, maintain the confidentiality of all confidential or proprietary
information of and with respect to the Company existing as of the Closing Date
including, without limitation, Trade Secrets (collectively, "Confidential
Information") and shall not disclose any Confidential Information except (i)
where specifically required by Law or legal process pursuant to the reasonable
advice of legal counsel to the Seller (and in such case only after providing the
Buyer, where practicable, with sufficient notice to enable them to move for a
protective order), (ii) to the extent such information becomes generally
available to the public other than as a result of a disclosure by the Seller, or
any of their Affiliates in violation of this Section 4.11, (iii) to the extent
such information becomes available to the Seller, or their Affiliates on a
non-confidential basis from a source other than the Buyer, provided that, to the
knowledge of Seller, such source is not prohibited from disclosing such
information by a contractual, legal or fiduciary obligation (whether or not in
writing) or (iv) to the extent independently developed by the Seller, or any of
its Affiliates, without use of or inclusion of any Confidential Information.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, the provisions of this Section 4.11 shall not
apply to any Confidential Information that was utilized jointly by both the
Seller and the Company prior to the Closing Date provided that both parties
treat such Confidential Information in accordance with applicable law and any
confidentiality agreements that they are bound by with respect to such
Confidential Information.
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            Section 4.12 Non-contravention. The Buyer shall not take, nor agree
to commit to take, any action that would or is reasonably likely to result in
any of the conditions to the Closing set forth in Article V not being satisfied,
or would make any representation or warranty of the Buyer contained herein
inaccurate in any respect at, or as of any time prior to, the Closing Date, or
that would materially impair the ability of the Company, the Buyer, or the
Seller to consummate the Closing in accordance with the terms hereof or
materially delay such consummation.

            Section 4.13 Trademark License Agreement. It is understood and
agreed that Buyer shall not acquire direct or indirect ownership of the
"DriverShield" mark, or the logo and design (as depicted in Exhibit A) currently
in use by Seller and the Company (the "Retained Intellectual Property"). At the
Closing, Seller on the one hand, and Buyer and the Company, on the other hand,
shall enter into a license agreement substantially in the form of Exhibit B
hereto (the "Trademark License Agreement") with respect to the Retained
Intellectual Property. Among other things, the Seller shall grant the Buyer and
the Company a non-exclusive, worldwide, royalty free, transferable (to any
Affiliate), perpetual license to the Retained Intellectual Property in the
Trademark License Agreement.

            Section 4.14 Security Agreement. . In order for the Seller to secure
the Purchase Price owed by the Buyer, the Buyer and the Company agree to provide
the Seller a perfected security interest in: (i) all of the assets of the
Company and (ii) all of the issued and outstanding common stock shares of the
Company held by the Buyer and agree to enter into a Security Agreement in the
form of Exhibit C hereto (the "Security Agreement").

            Section 4.15 Employment Termination Agreement. Following the
purchase by the Buyer of the capital stock of the Company, the Buyer's
employment with the Seller shall be terminated. Therefore, the Seller and the
Buyer agree to enter into the Employment Termination Agreement in the form of
Exhibit D hereto (the "Employment Termination Agreement").

            Section 4.16 Post-Closing Cooperation. In case at any time after the



Closing Date any further action is necessary, proper or advisable to carry out
the purposes of this Agreement, as soon as reasonably practicable, each party
hereto shall take, or cause its proper officers or directors to take, all such
necessary, proper or advisable actions.

            Section 4.17 Subsequent Actions. If at any time during the 12 months
immediately following the Closing, the Buyer will consider or be advised that
any deeds, bills of sale, instruments of conveyance, assignments, assurances or
any other actions or things are necessary or desirable (i) to vest, perfect or
confirm ownership (of record or otherwise) in the Buyer, its right, title or
interest in, to or under any or all of the Company Shares and other assets
conveyed hereunder, (ii) to vest, perfect or confirm ownership (of record or
otherwise) in the Company of any of its rights, properties or assets or any
assets of the Seller or any of its Affiliates primarily
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related to the Company, (iii) to run the business of the Company as presently
conducted, or (iv) otherwise to carry out this Agreement, the Seller shall
execute and deliver all deeds, bills of sale, instruments of conveyance, powers
of attorney, assignments and assurances and take and do all such other actions
and things as may be requested by the Buyer in order to vest, perfect or confirm
any and all right, title and interest in, to and under such rights, properties
or assets in the Buyer or the Company or otherwise to carry out this Agreement.

            Section 4.18 Web Site Linking Agreement. At the Closing, Seller, on
one hand, and Buyer and the Company, on the other hand, shall enter into a Web
Site Linking Agreement substantially in the form of Exhibit E hereto (the "Web
Site Linking Agreement").

            Section 4.19  [Intentionally omitted]

            Section 4.20  [Intentionally omitted]

            Section 4.21  [Intentionally omitted]

            Section 4.22 Toll Free Telephone Number. It is understood between
Buyer and Seller that on and after the Closing Date the Company will continue to
use, and have exclusive rights to, the toll free telephone number or numbers
used by the Company's customers, prospects and suppliers as of the date of this
Agreement.

            Section 4.23 [Intentionally omitted]

            Section 4.24 Transferred Assets/Liabilities. Notwithstanding
anything herein to the contrary the parties acknowledge that prior to Closing,
the Company shall transfer those assets and liabilities of the Company listed on
Section 4.24 of the Company Disclosure Schedule that is labeled "Transferred
Assets/Liabilities", to the Seller and/or a Seller's subsidiary.

                                    ARTICLE V

                CONDITIONS TO CONSUMMATION OF THE STOCK PURCHASE
                ------------------------------------------------

            Section 5.1 Conditions to Each Party's Obligations to Consummate the
Stock Purchase. The respective obligations of each party to consummate the
transactions contemplated hereby is subject to the satisfaction at or prior to
the Closing Date of the following conditions:

(a) No statute, rule, regulation, executive order, decree, or injunction shall
have been enacted, entered, promulgated or enforced by any court or Governmental
Entity that remains in force and prohibits the consummation of the transactions
described herein.

(b) No action or proceeding before a court or any other Governmental Entity or
body shall have been instituted or threatened to restrain or prohibit the
transactions contemplated by this Agreement and no Governmental Entity or body
shall have taken any other action or made any request of the Buyer as a result
of which the management of the Buyer deems it inadvisable to proceed with the
transactions hereunder.

            Section 5.2 Further Conditions to the Seller's Obligations. The



obligations of the Seller to consummate the transactions contemplated hereby are
further subject to satisfaction or waiver by the Seller of the following
conditions:

(a) The representations and warranties of the Buyer contained in this Agreement
shall be true and correct in all material respects (other than representations
and warranties subject to "materiality" qualifiers, which shall be true,
complete and correct as stated) at and as of the Closing Date as though such
representations and warranties were made at and as of such date (except to the
extent expressly made as of an earlier date, in which case, as of such date);

(b) The Buyer shall have performed and complied in all material respects with
all agreements, obligations and covenants required by this Agreement to be
performed or complied with by it on or prior to the Closing;

(c) The Buyer shall have delivered to the Seller an officer's certificate
reasonably satisfactory in form and substance to the Seller to the effect that
each of the conditions specified above in Sections 5.2(a) and (b) is satisfied
in all respects; and

(d) The Seller shall have received the deliveries set forth in Section 1.7.

            Section 5.3 Further Conditions to the Buyer's Obligations. The
obligations of the Buyer to consummate the transactions contemplated hereby are
further subject to the satisfaction or waiver by the Buyer at or prior to the
Closing Date of the following conditions:

(a) The representations and warranties of the Seller and the Company contained
in this Agreement shall be true and correct in all material respects (other than
representations and warranties subject to "materiality" qualifiers, which shall
be true, complete and correct as stated) at and as of the Closing Date as though
such representations and warranties were made at and as of such date (except to
the extent expressly made as of an earlier date, in which case, as of such
date);

(b) The Seller shall have performed and complied in all material respects with
all agreements, obligations and covenants required by this Agreement to be
performed or complied with by it on or prior to the Closing;

(c) The Buyer shall have received the deliveries set forth in Section 1.7;

                                       41

(d) Effective as of the Closing, the Seller and the Company will have taken such
actions as are necessary to ensure that as of the Closing, only those persons
listed on Section 5.3(d) of the Company Disclosure Schedule are Employees of the
Company (the "Company Employees"). Seller acknowledges that all other Employees
shall have their employment transferred to the Seller, as appropriate, effective
as of the time of Closing;

(e) The Seller shall have obtained approval of this Agreement and the
transactions contemplated herein as may be necessary under New York corporation
law, the Exchange Act, the Securities Act, and the rules and regulations of
Nasdaq;

(f) [Intentionally omitted]

(g) The Company shall have repaid all of its outstanding indebtedness for
borrowed money and there shall be no indebtedness as between the Company, on the
one hand, and the Seller and its Affiliates, on the other hand; and

(h) The Seller shall have delivered to the Buyer an officer's certificate
reasonably satisfactory in form and substance to the Buyer to the effect that
each of the conditions specified above in Sections 5.3(a), (b), (d), (e), and
(g) is satisfied in all respects.

                                   ARTICLE VI

                           TERMINATION AND ABANDONMENT
                           ---------------------------

            Section 6.1 Termination. This Agreement may be terminated and the
transactions contemplated hereby may be abandoned at any time prior to the



Closing

Date:

(a) by mutual written consent of the Seller and the Buyer;

(b) by the Seller or the Buyer at any time after September 1, 2003, if the
Closing shall not have occurred by such date; provided, however, that the right
to terminate this Agreement under this Section 6.1(b) shall not be available to
(i) the Seller, if the Seller has breached any of its representations,
warranties or covenants hereunder in any material respect and such breach has
been the cause of or resulted in the failure of the Closing to occur on or
before such date, (ii) the Buyer, if the Buyer has breached any of its
representations, warranties or covenants hereunder in any material respect and
such breach has been the cause of or resulted in the failure of the Closing to
occur on or before such date,

(c) by the Seller, on the one hand, or the Buyer, on the other hand, if one of
the others shall have breached or failed to perform in any material respect any
of its respective representations, warranties, covenants or other agreements
contained in this Agreement, which breach or failure to perform (i) would give
rise to the failure of a condition set forth in Section 5.2(a) or (b) or 5.3(a)
(b), (d) (e), (f), or (g), as applicable, and (ii) cannot be or has not been
cured within 30 days after the giving of written notice to the Seller or the
Buyer, as applicable;
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(d) [Intentionally omitted]

(e) by the Buyer during or upon completion of due diligence of the Buyer's
reasonable determination that it is not satisfied with its findings regarding
any material element of the contemplated transaction, limited to only those
material assets and liabilities being transferred as a consequence of this
transaction, which assets are owned or used by, and which liabilities were
incurred by, the Company in the ordinary conduct of the Business as of the
Closing Date.

            Section 6.2 Procedure for and Effect of Termination. In the event of
termination of this Agreement and abandonment of the transactions contemplated
hereby by the parties hereto pursuant to Section 6.1 hereof, written notice
thereof shall be given by a party so terminating to the other party and this
Agreement shall forthwith terminate and shall become null and void (except as
provided in Section 6.2(c) below) and of no further effect, and the transactions
contemplated hereby shall be abandoned without further action by the Seller or
the Buyer. If this Agreement is terminated pursuant to Section 6.1 hereof:

(a) Each party shall redeliver all documents, work papers and other materials of
the other parties relating to the transactions contemplated hereby, whether so
obtained before or after the execution hereof, to the party furnishing the same,
and all confidential information received by any party hereto with respect to
the other party shall be treated in accordance with Section 4.11 hereof (in the
case of the Buyer as if made by the Buyer);

(b) All filings, applications and other submissions made pursuant hereto, if
any, shall, to the extent practicable, be withdrawn from the agency or other
person to which made; and

(c) There shall be no liability or obligation hereunder on the part of the
Seller or the Company, on one hand, or the Buyer, on the other hand, or any of
their respective directors, officers, employees, Affiliates, controlling
persons, agents or representatives, except that the Seller or the Company, on
one hand, or the Buyer, on the other hand, may have liability to the other
party/parties if the basis of termination is a material breach by the Seller,
the Company or the Buyer, as the case may be, of one or more of the provisions
of this Agreement, and except that the obligations provided for in Sections 4.11
and 8.8 hereof shall survive any such termination.

                                  ARTICLE VII

                          SURVIVAL AND INDEMNIFICATION
                          ----------------------------



            Section 7.1 Survival Periods. The representations and warranties
made by the parties in this Agreement shall survive the Closing and shall
continue in full force and effect without limitation after the Closing except
that, subject to the provisions of the next sentence, neither the Buyer, on the
one hand, nor the Seller or the Company, on the other, shall have any liability
with respect to any matter if notice of a claim has not been provided on or
prior to the third anniversary of the Closing Date. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, (a) any indemnification
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obligations of any sort relating to (i) Section 2.12 (Taxes), or (ii) Section
2.10 (ERISA) shall continue in full force and effect without limitation, unless
the Buyer shall not have given notice of a claim on or prior to the expiration
of the statute of limitations applicable to such matters, in which case such
indemnification obligations shall terminate, (b) the representations and
warranties contained in Sections 2.1 through and including 2.4 and Sections 3.1
through and including 3.3 and any indemnification obligations in connection
therewith shall continue in full force and effect without any limitation, (c)
any claims, actions or suits the Buyer may have which arise from any fraud on
the part of any the Seller or the Company, or any representative of either,
shall continue in full force and effect without limitation and (d) all of the
provisions and obligations of Section 1.2, 8.4 and 8.7 shall continue in full
force and effect without limitation until the payment by the Buyer to the Seller
of the Purchase Price.

            Section 7.2 The Seller's Agreement to Indemnify.

(a) Subject to the terms and conditions set forth herein, from and after the
Closing, the Seller shall indemnify and hold harmless the Buyer, its Affiliates
(including the Company after the Closing), and their respective directors,
officers, employees, controlling persons, agents and representatives and their
successors and assigns (collectively, the "Buyer Indemnitees") from and against
all liability, demands, claims, actions or causes of action, assessments,
losses, damages, costs and expenses (including, without limitation, reasonable
attorneys' fees and expenses) (collectively, the "Buyer Damages") either (i)
arising out of any act or omission (including without limitation negligence or
breach of contract) of Seller or the Company on or before the Closing, (ii)
asserted against or incurred by any Buyer Indemnitee as a result of or arising
out of (w) a breach of any representation or warranty of the Seller contained in
this Agreement, (x) a breach of any covenant or agreement on the part of the
Seller under this Agreement (y) the enforcement or defense of any Intellectual
Property or Retained Intellectual Property, or (z) any obligations of Seller or
any Affiliate (including without limitation the Company) with respect to any
obligations arising before the Closing under the Joint Contracts (as defined in
Section 2.13(a)).

(b) The Seller shall be obligated to indemnify the Buyer Indemnitees pursuant to
clause (i) of Section 7.2(a) only for those claims giving rise to Buyer Damages
as to which the Buyer Indemnitees have given the Seller notice thereof no later
than forty-five (45) days after the end of any applicable survival period (as
provided for in Section 7.1). Any written notice delivered by a Buyer Indemnitee
to the Seller with respect to Buyer Damages shall set forth with as much
specificity as reasonably practicable the basis of the claim for Buyer Damages
and, to the extent reasonably practicable, a reasonable estimate of the amount
thereof.

(c) Notwithstanding anything to the contrary, the Seller shall not be obligated
to indemnify the Buyer if the Buyer's Damages were incurred due to the
intentional and/or negligent acts of Barry J. Spiegel.

            Section 7.3 The Buyer's Agreement to Indemnify.
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(a) Subject to the terms and conditions set forth herein, from and after the
Closing, the Buyer (the "Buyer Indemnitors") shall indemnify and hold harmless
the Seller, its Affiliates, and their respective directors, officers, employees,
controlling persons, agents and representatives and their successors and assigns
(collectively, the "Seller Indemnitees") from and against all liability,
demands, claims, actions or causes of action, assessments, losses, damages,
costs and expenses (including, without limitation, reasonable attorneys' fees



and expenses) (collectively, "Seller Damages") asserted against or incurred by
any Seller Indemnitee as a result of or arising out of (i) a breach of any
representation or warranty of the Buyer contained in this Agreement, (ii) a
breach of any covenant or agreement on the part of the Buyer under this
Agreement, or (iii) any obligation of the Company or any Affiliate with respect
to the Joint Contracts incurred after the Closing.

(b) The Buyer Indemnitors shall be obligated to indemnify the Seller Indemnitees
pursuant to clause (i) of Section 7.3(a) only for those claims giving rise to
Seller Damages as to which the Seller Indemnitees have given the Buyer
Indemnitors written notice thereof no later than forty-five (45) days of the end
of any applicable survival period (as provided for in Section 7.1). Any written
notice delivered by a Seller Indemnitee to the Buyer Indemnitors with respect to
Seller Damages shall set forth with as much specificity as is reasonably
practicable the basis of the claim for Seller Damages and, to the extent
reasonably practicable, a reasonable estimate of the amount thereof.

            Section 7.4 Third-Party Indemnification. The obligations of the
Seller to indemnify the Buyer Indemnitees under Section 7.2 hereof with respect
to Buyer Damages and the obligations of the Buyer Indemnitors to indemnify the
Seller Indemnitees under Section 7.3 with respect to Seller Damages, in either
case resulting from the assertion of liability by third parties (each, as the
case may be, a "Claim"), will be subject to the following terms and conditions:

(a) Any party against whom any Claim is asserted will give the indemnifying
party written notice of any such Claim promptly after learning of such Claim,
and the indemnifying party may at its option undertake the defense thereof by
representatives of its own choosing. Failure to give prompt notice of a Claim
hereunder shall not affect the indemnifying party's obligations under this
Article VII, except to the extent the indemnifying party is materially
prejudiced by such failure to give prompt notice. If the indemnifying party,
within 30 days after notice of any such Claim, or such shorter period as is
reasonably required, fails to assume the defense of such Claim, the Buyer
Indemnitee or the Seller Indemnitee, as the case may be, against whom such Claim
has been made will (upon further notice to the indemnifying party) have the
right to undertake the defense, compromise or settlement (subject to the terms
of Section 7.4(c)) of such claim on behalf of and for the account and risk, and
at the expense, of the indemnifying party, subject to the right of the
indemnifying party to assume the defense of such Claim at any time prior to
settlement, compromise or final determination thereof.

(b) So long as the indemnifying party has assumed the defense of any Claim in
the manner set forth above, the indemnifying party shall have the exclusive
right to contest, defend and
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litigate such Claim and, except as expressly provided in Section 7.4(c), shall
have the exclusive right, in its sole discretion, to settle any such claim,
either before or after the initiation of litigation at such time and on such
terms as the indemnifying party deems appropriate. If the indemnifying party
elects not to assume the defense of any such Claim (which shall be without
prejudice to its right at any time to assume subsequently such defense), the
indemnifying party will nonetheless be entitled, at its own expense, to
participate in such defense. The indemnified party shall have the right to
participate, with separate counsel (which counsel shall act in an advisory
capacity only), in any such contest, defense, litigation or settlement conducted
by the indemnifying party. After notice from the indemnifying party to such
indemnified party of the indemnifying party's election to assume the defense of
such Claim, the indemnifying party will not be liable to such indemnified party
for any expenses of the indemnified party's counsel that are subsequently
incurred in connection with the defense thereof; provided, however, that the
expense of such indemnified party's counsel shall be paid by the indemnifying
party if (i) the indemnifying party requested such separate counsel to
participate or (ii) in the reasonable opinion of counsel to the indemnified
party, a significant conflict of interest exists between the indemnifying party,
on the one hand, and the indemnified party, on the other hand, that would make
such separate representation clearly advisable.

(c) Without the prior written consent of the indemnified party (which consent
shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed), the indemnifying party shall not
admit any liability with respect to, or settle, compromise or discharge, any
Claim or consent to the entry of any judgment with respect thereto, except in



the case of any settlement that includes as an unconditional term thereof the
delivery by the claimant or plaintiff to the indemnified party of a written
release from all liability in respect of such Claim. In addition, whether or not
the indemnifying party shall have assumed the defense of the Claim, the
indemnified party shall not admit any liability with respect to, or settle,
compromise or discharge, any Claim or consent to the entry of any judgment with
respect thereto, without the prior written consent of the indemnifying party
(which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed), and the
indemnifying party will not be subject to any liability for any such admission,
settlement, compromise, discharge or consent to judgment made by an indemnified
party without such prior written consent of the indemnifying party.

(d) The indemnifying party and the indemnified party shall cooperate fully in
all aspects of any investigation, defense, pre-trial activities, trial,
compromise, settlement or discharge of any claim in respect of which indemnity
is sought pursuant to this Article VII, including, but not limited to, by
providing the other party with reasonable access to employees and officers
(including as witnesses) and other information.

            Section 7.5 No Duplication; Sole Remedy.

(a) Any liability for indemnification hereunder shall be determined without
duplication of recovery by reason of the state of facts giving rise to such
liability constituting a breach of more than one representation, warranty,
covenant or agreement.

(b) The Buyer's on the one hand, and the Seller's, on the other hand, respective
rights to indemnification as provided for in Sections 7.2 and 7.3, as
applicable, shall be the exclusive remedy for any Buyer Damages or Seller
Damages, respectively, for which indemnification is provided hereunder;
provided, however, that nothing contained herein shall prevent an indemnified
party from pursuing remedies as may be available to such party under applicable
law in the event of (i) fraud or willful misconduct, (ii) only equitable relief
would be suitable to address the injury or possible injury, or (iii) an
indemnifying party's failure to comply with its indemnification obligations
hereunder.

            Section 7.6 Indemnification Matters Governed by this Article VII.
Notwithstanding anything contained herein to the contrary, except as provided in
Section 4.6(m), Article VII shall have no application with respect to any matter
that is governed by Section 4.6.

                                  ARTICLE VIII

                            MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS
                            ------------------------

            Section 8.1 Entire Agreement. This Agreement (including the Company
Disclosure Schedule and any other schedules or exhibits to this Agreement)
constitutes the entire agreement of the parties relating to the subject matter
hereof and supersede other prior and contemporaneous agreements and
understandings between the parties both oral and written regarding such subject
matter.

            Section 8.2 Severability. It is the desire and intent of the parties
to this Agreement that the provisions of this Agreement shall be enforced to the
fullest extent permissible under the laws and public policies applied in each
jurisdiction in which enforcement is sought. If any particular provisions or
portion of this Agreement shall be adjudicated by a court of competent
jurisdiction to be invalid or unenforceable, this Agreement shall be deemed
amended to delete therefrom such provision or portion adjudicated to be invalid
or unenforceable, such amendment to apply only with respect to the operation of
such Agreement in the particular jurisdiction in which such adjudication is
made.

            Section 8.3 Notices. Any notice required or permitted by this
Agreement must be in writing and must be sent by facsimile, by nationally
recognized commercial overnight courier, or mailed by United States registered
or certified mail, addressed to the other party at the address below or to such
other address for notice (or facsimile number, in the case of a notice by
facsimile) as a party gives the other party written notice of in accordance with



this Section 8.3. Any such notice will be effective as of the date of receipt:

(a) if to the Buyer, to

                                                Barry J. Spiegel
                                                c/o American Member Corp.
                                                12514 West Atlantic Blvd
                                                Coral Springs, Florida 33071
                                                Facsimile:  (954) 340-3607
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                                    with a copy to:

                                                Robert C.White, Esquire and
                                                Christopher M. Trapani, Esquire
                                                Hodgson Russ LLP
                                                1801 N. Military Trail
                                                Suite 200
                                                Boca Raton, Florida 33431
                                                Facsimile:  (561) 394-3862
(b) if to the Seller, to

                                                Accessity Corp.
                                                Barry Siegel
                                                12514 West Atlantic Blvd
                                                Coral Springs, Florida 33071
                                                Facsimile:  (954) 752-6544
                                    with a copy to:

                                                Lawrence A. Muenz, Esquire
                                                Meritz & Muenz LLP
                                                Three Hughes Place
                                                Dix Hills, New York 11746
                                                Facsimile:  (631) 242-6715

            Section 8.4 Arbitration.

Any dispute, controversy or claim arising under, out of, in connection with or
in relation to this Agreement, or the breach, termination, validity or
enforceability of any provision hereof (a "Dispute"), if not resolved informally
through negotiation between the parties, it will be resolved by final and
binding arbitration conducted in accordance with and subject to the Commercial
Arbitration Rules of the AAA then applicable. One arbitrator will be selected by
the parties' mutual agreement or, failing that, by the AAA, and the arbitrator
will allow such discovery as is appropriate, consistent with the purposes of
arbitration in accomplishing fair, speedy and cost effective resolution of
disputes. The arbitrator will reference the rules of evidence of the Federal
Rules of Civil Procedure then in effect in setting the scope of discovery,
except that no requests for admissions will be permitted and interrogatories
will be limited to identifying (a) persons with knowledge of relevant facts and
(b) expert witnesses and their opinions and the bases therefor. Judgment upon
the award rendered in any such arbitration may be entered in any court having
jurisdiction thereof. Any negotiation, mediation or arbitration conducted
pursuant to this paragraph will take place in Broward County, FL. Other than
those matters involving injunctive relief or any action necessary to enforce the
award of the arbitrator, the parties agree that the
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provisions of this paragraph are a complete defense to any suit, action or other
proceeding instituted in any court or before any administrative tribunal with
respect to any Dispute or the performance by either party of its obligations
herein. The parties also agree that the AAA Optional Rules for Emergency
Measures of Protection shall apply to the proceedings.

            Section 8.5 Descriptive Headings. The descriptive headings herein
are inserted for convenience of reference only and shall in no way be construed
to define, limit, describe, explain, modify, amplify, or add to the
interpretation, construction or meaning of any provision of, or scope or intent
of, this Agreement nor in any way affect this Agreement.

            Section 8.6 Counterparts. This Agreement may be signed in



counterparts and such counterparts of this Agreement when executed by all
signatories, will together constitute one original of this Agreement. This
Agreement shall become effective when each party hereto shall have received
counterparts thereof signed by all the other parties hereto. A facsimile or
photocopy of a signature on a counterpart will constitute an original for all
purposes.

            Section 8.7 Assignment. The Buyer may assign this Agreement to
another business entity (the "Assignee Company") in which Barry J. Spiegel
("Spiegel") is and remains in management control and holds a majority of the
equity ownership. Should Spiegel wish to relinquish management control and/or
majority ownership in the Buyer or Assignee Company, then the Purchase Price
must first be made to the Seller.

            Section 8.8 Fees and Expenses. Whether or not this Agreement and the
transactions contemplated hereby are consummated, and except as otherwise
expressly set forth herein, all costs and expenses (including legal fees and
expenses) incurred in connection with, or in anticipation of, this Agreement and
the transactions contemplated hereby shall be paid by the party incurring such
expenses (except that Seller shall pay all of the Company's costs and expenses).
Each of the Seller, on the one hand, and the Buyer, on the other hand, shall
indemnify and hold harmless the other parties from and against any and all
claims or liabilities for financial advisory and finders' fees incurred by
reason of any action taken by such party or otherwise arising out of the
transactions contemplated by this Agreement by any person claiming to have been
engaged by such party.

            Section 8.9 Interpretation. Throughout this Agreement, nouns,
pronouns and verbs shall be construed as masculine, feminine, neuter, singular
or plural, whichever shall be applicable. Unless otherwise specified, all
references herein to "Section" shall refer to corresponding provisions of this
Agreement or the Company Disclosure Schedule, as the case may be, whenever the
words "include," "includes" or "including" are used in this Agreement, they are
deemed to be followed by the words "without limitation. "The phrase" to the
knowledge of the Seller" or any similar phrase shall mean such facts and other
information that as of the date hereof are actually known or should have been
known, after due inquiry, to any director, officer, employee, advisor or legal
representative of the Seller or the Company. In the event an ambiguity or
question of intent or interpretation arises, this Agreement shall be construed
as if drafted jointly by the parties and no presumption or burden of proof shall
arise favoring or disfavoring any party by virtue of the authorship of any
provisions of this Agreement.
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            Section 8.10 No Third-Party Beneficiaries. This Agreement shall not
benefit or create any right or cause of action in or on behalf of any person
other than the parties hereto; provided, however, that this Agreement will be
binding upon, inure to the benefit of, and be enforceable by, the parties and
their respective successors and permitted assigns.

            Section 8.11 No Waivers; Modification. Any waiver of any right or
default hereunder will be effective only in the instance given and will not
operate as or imply a waiver of any other or similar right or default on any
subsequent occasion. No waiver, modification or amendment of this Agreement or
of any provision hereof will be effective unless in writing and signed by the
party against whom such waiver, modification or amendment is sought to be
enforced.

            Section 8.12 Specific Performance. The parties hereto agree that if
any of the provisions of this Agreement were not performed in accordance with
their specific terms or were otherwise breached, irreparable damage would occur,
no adequate remedy at law would exist and damages would be difficult to
determine, and that the parties shall be entitled to specific performance of the
terms hereof and immediate injunctive relief, without the necessity of proving
the inadequacy of money damages as a remedy, in addition to any other remedy at
law or equity.

            Section 8.13 Non-Competition. None of the Buyer, the Company, or its
Affiliates shall, at any time during the period commencing on the Closing Date
and terminating on February 5, 2007, directly or indirectly, own, operate or
become an Affiliate of any Person engaged in the business of providing vehicle
repair or accident management services for corporate or government fleets, or



itself engage in any such activity; provided that the foregoing shall not
prohibit the Buyer, the Company, or its Affiliates from engaging in the business
of being a provider of collision repair management services directly to the
insurance industry only, as conducted by DriverShield CRM Corp. as of February
6, 2002. Notwithstanding the above, nothing herein shall preclude the Buyer, the
Company or its Affiliates from marketing its programs as long as such programs
do not involve providing vehicle repair or accident management services to
corporate or government fleets.
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            IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each of the undersigned has caused this
Agreement to be duly signed as of the date first above written.

                                                American Member Corp.

                                                By:  ___________________________
                                                Name:  _________________________
                                                Title:  ________________________

                                                Accessity Corp.

                                                By:  ___________________________
                                                Name:  _________________________
                                                Title:  ________________________

                                                DriverShield ADS Corp.

                                                By:  ___________________________
                                                Name:  _________________________
                                                Title:  ________________________
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Exhibit A
[GRAPHIC OMITTED]

                              DRIVER'S SHIELD LOGO



Disclosure Schedule 4.24    Transferred Assets/Liabilities

All current assets and liabilities of the Company through July 31, 2003,
including but not limited to: cash, accounts receivable, pre-paid expenses
and/or accounts payable, whether or not earned, paid, credited, billed,
invoiced, or accrued. Subsequent to the Closing, the parties will reconcile
these items and transfer the appropriate accounts to the Seller pursuant to
Section 4.24 of this Agreement.
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                                                                    EXHIBIT 10.2
                                                                    ------------

                                                                       Exhibit D
                                                                       ---------

                        EMPLOYMENT TERMINATION AGREEMENT

         EMPLOYMENT TERMINATION AGREEMENT (the "TERMINATION Agreement") dated
August 1, 2003 by and between Accessity Corp., f/k/a drivershield.com Corp., a
New York corporation with offices at 12514 West Atlantic Blvd, Coral Springs,
Florida 33071 (the "Company"), and Barry J. Spiegel, with offices at c/o
Accessity Corp., 12514 West Atlantic Blvd, Coral Springs, Florida 33071 (the
"Executive").

                               W I T N E S S E T H
                               -------------------

         WHEREAS, the Company desires that Executive's employment with the
Company be terminated upon closing of the transaction whereby the Company sells
to American Member Corp. ("American Member") all of the capital stock of
DriverShield ADS Corp., and

         WHEREAS, the Executive desires to terminate his employment with the
Company upon closing of the transaction whereby American Member purchases all of
the capital stock of DriverShield ADS Corp. from the Company,

         NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements
contained herein, and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt
sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, the parties agree as follows:

On the Closing Date, as defined in the Stock Purchase Agreement dated August 1,
2003 by and among Accessity Corp., DriverShield ADS Corp. and American Member,
the Employment Agreement dated January 30, 2003 between Accessity Corp., f/k/a
drivershield.com Corp. and Barry J. Spiegel (the "Employment Agreement") shall
terminate with neither party having any further rights or obligation pursuant to
the Employment Agreement, including Paragraph 10b, except as otherwise set forth
therein.

The Executive acknowledges that he will have ninety (90) days from the Closing
Date to exercise any stock options that were previously granted and are
exercisable.

         IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement as
of the date written below.

ACCESSITY CORP.                             BARRY J. SPIEGEL

By:___________________________      By:_________________________

Title:__________________________    Dated:______________________

Dated:______________________



                                                                    EXHIBIT 10.3
                                                                    ------------
                           WEB SITE LINKING AGREEMENT

         WEB SITE LINKING AGREEMENT ("Agreement") made as of the 1st day of
August 2003 by and among Accessity Corp., a New York corporation ("Seller"),
American Member Corp., a Florida corporation (the "Buyer"), and DriverShield ADS
Corp., a New York corporation (the "Company").

                                   WITNESSETH:
                                   -----------

         WHEREAS, Seller, Buyer and Company entered into a Stock Purchase
Agreement, dated as of August 1, 2003 (the "Stock Purchase Agreement"),
providing for the acquisition by Buyer, of all of the issued and outstanding
shares of stock of DriverShield ADS Corp.;

         WHERAS, Seller is the owner and operator of World Wide Web siteS with
Internet domain names DRIVERSSHIELD.COM and drivershield.com (the "Seller's
Site"); and

         WHEREAS, the Company anticipates to that it will own and operate its
own World Wide Web site with Internet domain name DRIVERSSHIELDAUTOCLUB.COM or
such other domain name as the Company determines (the "Company's Site"); and

         WHEREAS, pursuant to the Stock Purchase Agreement, Buyer, Company and
Seller agreed to enter this Agreement for Seller to maintain on Seller's Site a
hypertext link to Company's Site in connection with the Business.

         NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements
contained in this Agreement, and for other good and valuable consideration, the
receipt and adequacy of which are hereby acknowledged, the parties agree as
follows:

         1.       Seller's Obligations.

                  (a)     Seller agrees to place on Seller's Site a hypertext
                          link (the "Link") to Company's Site in its standard
                          format located at the Uniform Resource Locator ("URL")
                          address as set forth on Exhibit A or any other URL
                          address with which the Company replaces the
                          above-stated URL. The Link shall be no larger than
                          10,000 bytes of memory and take up no more space than
                          fifty pixels high by two hundred pixels wide.

                  (b)     In connection with the Link, Seller agrees to
                          incorporate the graphical image file provided by
                          Company (the "Image"), and

                          approved by Seller, in its reasonable sole discretion,
                          into hypertext markup language ("HTML") files located
                          at Seller's Site.

                  (c)     The Image shall appear on the default web page (the
                          "Home Page") of Seller's Site, which is the page a
                          user's web browser will generate as the result of
                          requesting the following Uniform Resource Locator
                          ("URL") address: www.DRIVERSSHIELD.COM/MAIN.HTM OR
                          DRIVERSHIELD.COM/MAIN.HTM, or any other URL address
                          with which Seller replaces the above-stated URLs.

                  (d)     Seller may make stylistic and editorial changes in the
                          format of the image, subject to prior notice to
                          Company, but will assure that the relative size and
                          prominence of the Link to Company's Site retains a
                          reasonable equivalence to the size and prominence of
                          the Image as provided by Company, previously approved
                          by Seller, in its reasonable sole discretion. and that
                          any copyrighted images, copyrighted tests, or
                          trademarks within the Image are not altered.

                  (e)     Seller shall use all reasonable efforts using existing



                          personnel at nominal cost to extract the present link
                          www.driversshield.com/auto_club/index.html from the
                          Seller's Site and move it to the Company's Site.
                          Otherwise, the Seller will maintain this present link
                          for the Term of this Agreement without incurring any
                          costs in addition to the normal cost of maintaining
                          the Seller's Site.

         2.       Company's Obligations. Company hereby grants to Seller, for
                  the term of this Agreement as provided for in Section 3,
                  below, a nonexclusive right to establish the Link to Company's
                  Site, as described more fully in Paragraph 1, above. In
                  addition, Company grants to Seller a nonexclusive license to
                  use certain intellectual property owned or licensed by
                  Company, including, but not limited to, copyrighted images,
                  copyrighted text and trademarks, only in connection with
                  establishing this Link. All such intellectual property, with
                  the exception of the trademarks licensed by Company from
                  Seller under their separate Trademark License Agreement will
                  hereafter be referred to as "Company's Intellectual Property."
                  Company may revise the Link as set forth on Exhibit A no more
                  than twice during any twelve (12) month period.

         3.       Company's Intellectual Property.

                  (a)     Company may grant a license to use Company's
                          Intellectual Property, to any corporation,
                          governmental authority, individual, limited liability
                          company, partnership, trust, unincorporated associate
                          or other entity (a "Person") other than Seller.

                  (b)     Seller agrees that the nature and quality of all
                          services rendered by Seller in connection with, and
                          all related advertising, promotional and other related
                          uses of, Company's Intellectual Property, by Seller
                          will conform to standards set by and under the control
                          of Company.
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                          Company acknowledges and agrees that the content, the
                          nature and quality of all services rendered by the
                          Seller and its Affiliates immediately prior to the
                          commencement date of this Agreement satisfies this
                          requisite standard of quality. The Seller agrees that
                          all use of Company's Intellectual Property shall inure
                          to the benefit of and be on behalf of the Company.

                  (c)     No right, title, or interest in Company's Intellectual
                          Property is being transferred to Seller under this
                          Agreement, except as specifically set forth in this
                          Agreement. Other than the right to use Company's
                          Intellectual Property under this Agreement, Seller is
                          not obtaining any proprietary or other interest in
                          Company's Intellectual Property. Seller may not (i)
                          modify Company's Intellectual Property, (ii)
                          sublicense or otherwise allow any other person or
                          entity to use Company's Intellectual Property or (iii)
                          grant to any person or entity the right to do anything
                          prohibited in clause (i) or (ii) of this sentence.

                  (d)     Seller acknowledges that all right, title and interest
                          in Company's Intellectual Property is in the name of
                          Company and waives any right it may have to challenge
                          or contest any right, title or interest of the
                          Company. The Seller shall indicate all of Company's
                          Intellectual Property as being owned by Company and
                          that they are being used with the permission of the
                          Company.

                  (e)     Seller will notify Company in writing of any
                          infringements or imitations by others of Company's
                          Intellectual Property that come to Seller's attention,



                          and Company will have the sole right to determine
                          whether any action will be taken on account of any
                          such infringements or imitations. Seller will not
                          institute any suit or take any action on account of
                          any such infringements or imitations without first
                          obtaining the written consent of Company. Seller
                          agrees to cooperate fully and in good faith with
                          Company for the purpose of securing and preserving
                          Company's rights in and to Company's Intellectual
                          Property, and Company will reimburse Seller for any
                          reasonable costs incurred in connection with its
                          cooperation (unless Seller is in breach of this
                          Agreement).

         4.       Term. This Agreement shall commence as of the date hereof and
                  shall expire five (5) years thereafter, unless terminated
                  earlier in accordance with the provisions of this Agreement
                  (the "Term"). The Term shall be renewable by the Company, at
                  the option of the *Seller*, by the Company providing the
                  Seller written notice of its intention to renew this Agreement
                  for additional five (5) year terms within six (6) months prior
                  to the expiration of the Term. Thereafter, the new renewed
                  terms shall be referred to as the Term herein.
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         5.       Compensation. The parties acknowledge that there shall be no
                  fees payable by the Company to the Seller for the benefits
                  received herein as consideration has been paid by the Buyer on
                  behalf of the Company pursuant to the Stock Purchase
                  Agreement.

         6.       Editorial Control. Each party agrees to notify the other of
                  any significant changes to the content or structure of the
                  Company's Site or the Seller's Site, respectively, within
                  thirty (30) days of such change.

         7.       Link Restriction. Seller agrees to place on Seller's Site
                  initially only the Link to Company's Site as specified in
                  Exhibit A. Except as provided herein, the Seller may not at
                  any time during the five-year period immediately following the
                  date of this Agreement provide Links from Seller's Site to
                  websites of other entities that provide vehicle accident
                  repair and management services to self-insured corporate and
                  government fleets.

         8.       Disclaimer of Warranty. THE WARRANTIES CONTAINED HEREIN ARE IN
                  LIEU OF ALL OTHER WARRANTIES OR CONDITIONS, EXPRESS OR
                  IMPLIED, INCLUDING, WITHOUT LIMITATION, THOSE OF
                  MERCHANTABILITY OF FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE. IN NO
                  EVENT SHALL SELLER BE LIABLE FOR DAMAGES, DIRECT OR INDIRECT,
                  INCLUDING INCIDENTAL OR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES, SUFFERED BY THE
                  COMPANY, USER, OR OTHER THIRD PARTY ARISING FROM BREACH OF
                  WARRANTY OR BREACH OF CONTRACT, NEGLIGENCE, OR ANY OTHER LEGAL
                  GROUND OF ACTION.

         9.       Site Maintenance. Both parties shall reasonably maintain their
                  respective Sites and take all commercially reasonable steps to
                  ensure that their web servers are running at all times, except
                  for Site maintenance that shall be performed upon Site at the
                  sole discretion of the owner of said Site. In the event that
                  one of the party's web sites should be inoperable due to
                  unforeseen circumstances of which the party has no control,
                  such as power outages, break-ins at the Site, or seizure of
                  equipment by a government entity, that party shall promptly
                  have the Site operational once the unforeseen event has been
                  rectified. Notwithstanding the above, either party may, at its
                  sole discretion, determine to shutdown their respective Site
                  at anytime, without prior notice to the other party due to an
                  unforeseeable event.

         10.      Termination.



                  (a)     Company's Right to Terminate. Company shall have the
                          right to immediately terminate this Agreement at any
                          time during the Term upon providing Seller written
                          notice thereof. The Seller shall have the right to
                          terminate this Agreement upon providing the Company
                          six (6) months advance written notice.

                  (b)     Right to Terminate on Notice. Either party may
                          terminate this Agreement on forty-five (45) days
                          written notice to the other party in the event of a
                          breach of any of the provisions of this Agreement
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                          by the other party provided that during the forty (45)
                          day period the breaching party fails to cure such
                          breach.

                  (c)     Seller's Right to Terminate. Seller shall have the
                          right to immediately terminate this Agreement at any
                          time upon the Seller transferring ownership to the
                          Company of the Internet domain names:
                          www.drivershield.com and www.driversshield.com
                          pursuant to Section 1.2 of the Stock Purchase
                          Agreement.

         11.      Post-Termination Rights.

                  (a)     Upon expiration or termination of this Agreement,
                          Seller shall within 10 days thereof:

                          1.    Remove the Link to Company's Site and provide
                                proof of the removal, except if termination
                                pursuant to Section 10(c) herein;

                          2.    Erase or destroy any of the Company's
                                Intellectual Property contained in the computer
                                memory or data storage apparatus under the
                                control of Seller;

                          3.    Return to Company each copy of Company's
                                Intellectual Property and each document and
                                other tangible item containing or relating to
                                Company's Intellectual Property in the
                                possession or under the control of Seller; and

                          4.    Not use, nor permit any Person or entity under
                                the control of Seller to use, Company's
                                Intellectual Property.

         12.      Notices. All notices and other communications hereunder shall
                  be in writing and shall be deemed to have been duly given,
                  upon receipt, if mailed by registered or certified mail,
                  postage prepaid, return receipt requested, overnight delivery,
                  or hand delivered, and sent via confirmed facsimile
                  transmission as follows:

                  (a)     if to the Company:

                                  Barry J. Spiegel
                                  c/o American Member Corp.
                                  12514 West Atlantic Blvd
                                  Coral Springs, Florida 33071
                                  Facsimile:  (954) 340-3607

                          with a copy to:

                                  Robert C.White, Esquire and
                                  Christopher M. Trapani, Esquire
                                  Hodgson Russ LLP
                                  1801 N. Military Trail
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                                  Suite 200
                                  Boca Raton, Florida 33431
                                  Facsimile:  (561) 394-3862

                  (b)     if to the Seller:

                                  Barry Siegel
                                  Accessity Corp.
                                  12514 West Atlantic Blvd
                                  Coral Springs, Florida 33071
                                  Facsimile:  (954) 752-6544

                           with a copy to:

                                  Lawrence A. Muenz, Esquire
                                  Meritz & Muenz LLP
                                  Three Hughes Place
                                  Dix Hills, New York 11746
                                  Facsimile:  (631) 242-6715

     or to such other address as the party to whom notice is given may have
     previously furnished to the other party in writing in accordance herewith.

         13.      Governing Law. THIS AGREEMENT SHALL BE GOVERNED BY, AND
                  CONSTRUED AND ENFORCED IN ACCORDANCE WITH, THE LAWS OF THE
                  STATE OF FLORIDA OTHER THAN CONFLICT OF LAWS PRINCIPLES
                  THEREOF DIRECTING THE APPLICATION OF ANY LAW OTHER THAN THAT
                  OF FLORIDA. COURTS WITHIN THE STATE OF FLORIDA (LOCATED WITHIN
                  THE COUNTY OF BROWARD, FLORIDA) WILL HAVE JURISDICTION OVER
                  ALL DISPUTES BETWEEN THE PARTIES HERETO ARISING OUT OF OR
                  RELATING TO THIS AGREEMENT AND THE AGREEMENTS, INSTRUMENTS AND
                  DOCUMENTS CONTEMPLATED HEREBY. THE PARTIES HEREBY CONSENT TO
                  AND AGREE TO SUBMIT TO THE JURISDICTION OF SUCH COURTS. EACH
                  OF THE PARTIES HERETO WAIVES, AND AGREES NOT TO ASSERT IN ANY
                  SUCH DISPUTE, TO THE FULLEST EXTENT PERMITTED BY APPLICABLE
                  LAW, ANY CLAIM THAT (I) SUCH PARTY IS NOT PERSONALLY SUBJECT
                  TO THE JURISDICTION OF SUCH COURTS, (II) SUCH PARTY AND SUCH
                  PARTY'S PROPERTY IS IMMUNE FROM ANY LEGAL PROCESS ISSUED BY
                  SUCH COURTS OR (III) ANY LITIGATION COMMENCED IN SUCH COURTS
                  IS BROUGHT IN AN INCONVENIENT FORUM. EACH PARTY HERETO HEREBY
                  IRREVOCABLY WAIVES ALL RIGHT TO TRIAL BY JURY IN ANY
                  PROCEEDING (WHETHER BASED ON CONTRACT, TORT OR OTHERWISE)
                  ARISING OUT OF OR RELATING TO THIS AGREEMENT OR ANY
                  TRANSACTION OR AGREEMENT CONTEMPLATED HEREBY OR THE ACTIONS OF
                  ANY PARTY HERETO IN THE NEGOTIATION, ADMINISTRATION,
                  PERFORMANCE OR ENFORCEMENT HEREOF.

         14.      Miscellaneous.
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                  (a)     Entire Agreement. This Agreement constitutes the
                          entire agreement between the parties hereto and
                          supersedes all prior agreements and understandings,
                          oral or written, between parties hereto with respect
                          to the subject matter hereof and hereof.

                  (b)     Amendments. This Agreement may not be amended,
                          modified or supplemented except by written agreement
                          of the parties hereto.

                  (c)     No Waiver. Nothing contained in this Agreement shall
                          cause the failure of either party to insist upon
                          strict compliance with any covenant, obligation,
                          condition or agreement contained herein to operate as
                          a waiver of, or estoppel with respect to, any such
                          covenant, obligation, condition or agreement by the
                          party entitled to the benefit thereof.

                  (d)     Headings. The headings contained in this Agreement are
                          for reference purposes only and shall not affect in
                          any way the meaning or interpretation of this



                          Agreement.

                  (e)     Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in
                          counterparts each of which shall be deemed to
                          constitute an original. When counterparts containing
                          signatures of all signatories are assembled together,
                          they will constitute one and the same instrument.

                  (f)     Severability. If any provisions hereof shall be held
                          invalid or unenforceable by any court of competent
                          jurisdiction or as a result of future legislative
                          action, such holding or action shall be strictly
                          construed and shall not affect the validity or effect
                          of any other provision hereof; provided, however, that
                          the parties shall use reasonable efforts, including,
                          but not limited to, the amendment of this Agreement,
                          to ensure that this Agreement shall reflect as closely
                          as practicable the intent of the parties hereto.

                  (g)     Specific Performance. Each of the parties hereto
                          acknowledges and agrees that the other party hereto
                          would be irreparably damaged in the event any of the
                          provisions of this Agreement were not performed in
                          accordance with their specific terms or were otherwise
                          breached. Accordingly, each of the parties hereto
                          agrees that they each shall be entitled to an
                          injunction or injunctions to prevent breaches of the
                          provisions of this Agreement and to enforce
                          specifically this Agreement and the terms and
                          provisions thereof in any action instituted for that
                          purpose, in addition to any other remedy to which such
                          party may be entitled, at law or in equity.

                  (h)     Independent Contractors. Nothing herein contained
                          shall be construed to place the parties in the
                          relationship of partners or joint venturers, and
                          neither party shall have any power to obligate or bind
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                          the other in any manner whatsoever, except as
                          otherwise provided for herein.

                  (i)     Exhibits. Each of the Exhibits attached hereto is
                          fully incorporated herein and made part hereof.

                  (j)     Binding Agreement. This Agreement is binding upon and
                          inures to the benefit of the parties and each
                          successor and assignee of the parties.

         IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the duly authorized officers of the parties hereto
have executed this Agreement as of the day and year first written above.

     SELLER:      ACCESSITY CORP.

     By: ____________________________________

         Name:

         Title:

COMPANY: AMERICAN MEMBER CORP.

By:      _____________________________________
         Name:
         Title:



DriverShield ADS Corp.

By:      ____________________________________

         Name:
         Title:
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                                  1. EXHIBIT A

                          www.drivershieldautoclub.com
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                                                                    EXHIBIT 31.1
                                                                    ------------

                            CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
                             18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
                             AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
                  SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
              PURSUANT TO REGULATION ss.240.15D-14 AS PROMULAGATED
                    BY THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

In connection with the Quarterly Report of Accessity Corp. (the "Company") on
Form 10-QSB for the period ended September 30, 2003, as filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the "Report"), I, Barry
Siegel, Chairman of the Board, Secretary and Chief Executive Officer of the
Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to
Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 pursuant to Regulation
ss.240.15d-14 as promulgated by the Securities and Exchange Commission, that:

(1)  I have reviewed the Report being filed;

(2)  Based on my knowledge, the Report does not contain any untrue statement of
     a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
     statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements
     were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by the Report;

(3)  Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial
     information included in the Report, fairly present in all material respects
     the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the issuer
     as of, and for, the periods presented in the Report;

(4)  The registrant's other certifying officers and I are responsible for
     establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined
     in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over
     financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and
     15d-15(f)) for the Registrant and have:

     (a)  Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such
          disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our
          supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the
          Registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to
          us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in
          which this report is being prepared;

     (b)  Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused
          such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under
          our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
          reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
          statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
          accounting principles;

     (c)  Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls
          and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
          effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end
          of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

     (d)  Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal
          control over financial reporting that occurred during the Registrant's
          most recent fiscal quarter that has materially affected, or is
          reasonably likely to materially affect, the Registrant's internal
          control over financial reporting; and

(5)  The small business issuer's other certifying officer(s) and I have
     disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over
     financial reporting, to the Registrant's auditors and the audit committee
     of the Registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the
     equivalent functions):

     (a)  All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or
          operation of internal control over financial reporting which are
          reasonably likely to adversely affect the Registrant's ability to
          record, process, summarize and report financial information; and



     (b)  Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other
          employees who have a significant role in the Registrant's internal
          control over financial reporting.

(6)  The registrant's other certifying officers and I have indicated in this
     quarterly report whether or not there were significant changes in internal
     controls or in other factors that could significantly affect internal
     controls subsequent to the date of our most recent evaluation, including
     any corrective actions with regard to significant deficiencies and material
     weaknesses.

                                            /s/ Barry Siegel
                                            ------------------------------
                                            Barry Siegel
                                            Chairman of the Board, Secretary and
                                            Chief Executive Officer



                                                                    EXHIBIT 31.2
                                                                    ------------

                            CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
                             18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
                             AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
                  SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
              PURSUANT TO REGULATION ss.240.15D-14 AS PROMULAGATED
                    BY THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

In connection with the Quarterly Report of Accessity Corp. (the "Company") on
Form 10-QSB for the period ended September 30, 2003, as filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the "Report"), I, Philip
Kart, Senior Vice President, Treasurer and Chief Financial Officer of the
Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to
Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 pursuant to Regulation
ss.240.15d-14 as promulgated by the Securities and Exchange Commission, that:

(1)  I have reviewed the Report being filed;

(2)  Based on my knowledge, the Report does not contain any untrue statement of
     a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
     statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements
     were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by the Report;

(3)  Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial
     information included in the Report, fairly present in all material respects
     the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the issuer
     as of, and for, the periods presented in the Report;

(4)  The registrant's other certifying officers and I are responsible for
     establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined
     in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over
     financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and
     15d-15(f)) for the Registrant and have:

     (a)  Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such
          disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our
          supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the
          Registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to
          us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in
          which this report is being prepared;

     (b)  Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused
          such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under
          our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
          reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
          statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
          accounting principles;

     (c)  Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls
          and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
          effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end
          of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

     (d)  Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal
          control over financial reporting that occurred during the Registrant's
          most recent fiscal quarter that has materially affected, or is
          reasonably likely to materially affect, the Registrant's internal
          control over financial reporting; and

(5)  The small business issuer's other certifying officer(s) and I have
     disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over
     financial reporting, to the Registrant's auditors and the audit committee
     of the Registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the
     equivalent functions):

     (a)  All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or
          operation of internal control over financial reporting which are
          reasonably likely to adversely affect the Registrant's ability to
          record, process, summarize and report financial information; and



     (b)  Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other
          employees who have a significant role in the Registrant's internal
          control over financial reporting.

(6)  The registrant's other certifying officers and I have indicated in this
     quarterly report whether or not there were significant changes in internal
     controls or in other factors that could significantly affect internal
     controls subsequent to the date of our most recent evaluation, including
     any corrective actions with regard to significant deficiencies and material
     weaknesses.

                                           By /s/ Philip Kart
                                           -------------------------------
                                           Philip Kart
                                           Senior Vice President,
                                           Treasurer and Chief Financial Officer



                                                                    EXHIBIT 32.1
                                                                    ------------

                            CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
                             18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
                             AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
                  SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Quarterly Report of Accessity Corp. (the "Company") on
Form 10-QSB for the period ended September 30, 2003 as filed with the Securities
and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the "Report"), I, Barry Siegel,
Chairman of the Board, Secretary and Chief Executive Officer of the Company,
certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906
of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

1.   The Report containing the financial statements for the Company fully
     complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
     Exchange Act of 1934; and

2.   The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material
     respects the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

                                            By /s/ Barry Siegel
                                            ---------------------
                                            Barry Siegel
                                            Chairman of the Board, Secretary and
                                            Chief Executive Officer



                                                                    EXHIBIT 32.2
                                                                    ------------

                            CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
                             18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
                             AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
                  SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Quarterly Report of Accessity Corp. (the "Company") on
Form 10-QSB for the period ended September 30, 2003, as filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the "Report"), I, Philip
Kart, Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of the Company, certify,
pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

1.   The Report containing the financial statements for the Company fully
     complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
     Exchange Act of 1934; and

2.   The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material
     respects the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

                                           By /s/ Philip Kart
                                           -------------------------------
                                           Philip Kart
                                           Senior Vice President, Treasurer and
                                           Chief Financial Officer


